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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk
that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market
in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take
no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or
in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Kingsley EduGroup Limited (the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries, (the “Group”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive; and there are no other matters the omission of which would
make any statement in this report misleading.
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At A Glance

&

EVENTS HIGHLIGHTS iE&)igE

Events Description
EE 323
10th Gym Fun Inter-Clubs Gymnastics Carnival KIS hosted the 10th Malaysian Gymnastic Inter-Club Competition,

organised by GymFun, for more than 350 participants from Kuala
Lumpur, Selangor, Johor, Perak and Penang over a period of two days
in the school.

£510/&Gym Fun Inter-Club Gymnastics Carnival KISTEEMRERITHGYm FunfB@ it REIMKXIIEE10/E FE2RFIE AR R LEANL TR, HH35022
RESTER. SHE. 2. BREREBNSEESE,

The Rift KIS® first Extra Curriculum Activities (‘ECA”) Musical held in a National
Public Theatre. The one-day performances consisted of 2 shows
were well received by the public and parents. The students gave an
astonishing display of their singing, acting and dancing talent.

The Rift KISEESHEERAFSEEREENTDORT, RB—X, HEMBEL, WSEIRRMARAFH
—HUFRT . BEMSHIER TBEIIE. REMEERE.

Cultural Students Education Programme - Wuhan & This is the First Student Exchange programme with China. The programme
Shenzhen Group saw students from Wuhan and Shenzhen visiting KIS after KIS's students
visited them earlier in China.

BEXHHEES - ERRISEESEHE AR ERIE—ERER RS . RERERRNSESREXREESB TKIS, MLLEIKIS
SR RRIEREFEA RS .

5-Star Award by Ministry of Education KIS received “5-Stars” certification from the Malaysian Ministry
of Education ("MOE”]) in recognition of Excellence in Classroom
Management, Academic Delivery and Results achieved.

HEMRERE FESRPRER A AR [ D2 | BB TKIS, FKISTEREEIE, HEEE RS RISE
SR .

Signing of agreement with Weifang Institute of Technology ("WIT"), In partnership with state owned University, Kingsley College signed an

China. agreement with WIT where WIT will send their staff and graduate to

Kingsley College for Masters and PhD programmes.

BAREMHHIE T 20 ( [ IR T2 ] ) 3=, Kingsley CollegefBEIT K2 E1E, WEIMHIETEMREE 7 —hins. Rigxihe, #HETS
BeXEE T R EE4HR{FKingsley CollegeKEME TR IETEE,

The Asia Economic and Entrepreneurship Forum The Asia Economic Summit jointly organised by Kingsley Strategic
Institute ("KSI”) brings together Leaders, Thinkers and Influencers from
Government, Business, Academic Institutions, Think Tanks and Civil
Society Organizations to discuss and debate the future of Asia in this
new era of disruption and trade wars.

RV e ] Kingsley Strategic Institute ( [ KSI | ) 2EERAEIMEHIERER TREBHT. b2, S
1%, BEMNRBHESEMIEEE. BERRTEE, BlESBkEZEFIFAZ TR
R EFRRT R AT

The ASEAN Community Leadership and Partnership Forum KSI is the co-organiser for the ASEAN Community Leadership &
Partnership Forum. This is an Annual Forum that bring together
Leaders from Government, Business, Academia, Think Tanks and Civil
Society to discuss the future challenges facing ASEAN in the new global
era. The forum with the theme, “Building Partnerships for a Sustainable
and Inclusive ASEAN” will also bring together next generation leaders
of ASEAN, as well as women and young entrepreneurs.

REAHERERIS A R RERE KSIZELEHIER A ERSRE A BB HRERER —F—EWE, BERETREEN. &%, 82
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Financial Summary

MHmME

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last four financial years, as extracted from

published audited financial statements, is set out below:
FEERBENEMKFENEENSERSERE (BRACTIBCERYBERE) $I0T:

Year ended 30 June At 30 June
BHZE6H30HILERE R6B30H
19 A2,
|
0
L4 |
Gross profit Current
margin(NOte 1) ratio(NOte 2)
%*Ug[ﬂﬁ%ﬂ ) | iﬁijj tb%l[ﬂﬁi 2)
|
60 2

0
A% 19
0
Gearing
ratio™o*?
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At 30 June 68300

2016 & 2017 & 2018 & 2019 &

RM’000 ¥¢% RM'000 4% RM'000F4% RM'000F&

Non-current assets 3EizsiEE 121,316 119,807 136,418 154,229
Current assets g#hisE 3,482 13,941 41,359 19,977
Current liabilities zana & 20,141 8,295 30,118 16,699
Net current (liabilities)/asset sl & )/ EEHE (16,659) 5,646 11,241 3,278
Total assets less current liabilities @sERGaRE 104,657 125,453 147,659 157,507
Total equity igasazm 20,583 31,890 68,518 76,266
Non-current liabilities JEzEI&E 84,074 93,563 79,141 81,241
Total equity and non-current liabilities g ERiEraSE 104,657 125,453 147,659 157,507

Note 1 - The calculation of gross profit margin is based on gross profit divided by revenue and multiplied by 100%

PIREN - EFYKIZE FIBF L2 1 T 100%51 5
Note 2 - The calculation of current ratio is based on current assets divided by current liabilities
MisE2 - mam xR B BEG KRB B ETE

Note 3 - The calculation of gearing ratio is based on interest-bearing liabilities divided by total equity and multiplied by 100%

PHRES - BB E1 12518 B B R E T 100%51 5
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Chairman’'s Statement

FHERES

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD, IT
IS MY DISTINCT PLEASURE TO
PRESENT THE ANNUAL REPORT
FOR KINGSLEY EDUGROUP
LIMITED (“KINGSLEY”) FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
("FY2019").

EHHIRRERT:

AABREEFEMRIREELHEH
BEEEEBRAE ( [EF] ) #F
201963308 EEE ( [ 201987 B4
E ) BNFH,

Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming
Choon (JP)
BB BB RPIEXTF
fat

Chairman E£J&

FY2019 has been a good year for Kingsley. We completed our Kingsley International
School Annex Building (“KIS Annex Building”) which have been very successful in
attracting new students to KIS and have also allowed us to attract new partnership
which was very important for us in the tertiary sector as it facilitates a new
direction and strategy which have been successfully implemented.

Throughout FY2019, we worked hard to realise our strategic objectives, leveraging
on our proven track record and strategic partnership that we formed through our
new status as a listed company. Despite uncertainty in the property market in
Malaysia and volatility in Economy due to the trade war between the United States
(“US”) and the People’s Republic of China or ("China”), we remained resilient,
capitalising on the growth in the education sector experienced throughout Asia.
Education institutions in the Asia-Pacific region are experiencing significant
enrolment increases, with more international students now choosing the region
over traditionally popular destinations such as Europe and the US. Recent
Times Higher Education’s (THE] Asia-Pacific University Rankings show regional
institutions numbering at 320, up from 243 just two years ago with overall
representation from the region growing by 32 per cent. And in the recent QS
World University Rankings, Universities in Asia took up 25 spots in the top 100
Universities in the world. The rapid rise in population and income levels in Asia,
bodes well for our industry as we see an increase in the demand for more well
rounded curriculum taught with English as the medium of instruction and with
qualification transferable the world over.

Against this backdrop, we made progress on our strategic objectives through the
completion of the construction of the KIS Annex Building making us one of the
best equipped International School. The completion of the KIS Annex Building has
also made possible the consolidation of our education business, turning Kingsley
Hills into an educational hub. From here new revenue streams is currently
being developed some of which is already coming to initial fruition. These new
development include the following but not limited to;
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I.  Kingsley Residential Hall

Firstly, it serves as the dormitory rooms for KIS current overseas
and out of state students. This also allows KIS to aggressively recruit
foreign students as previously this was not possible as we could not
house them in our own facilities. Secondly, the rooms also serves for us
to participate in student mobility programmes and student exchange
programmes. These programmes will enhance the reputation and
visibility of KIS in other parts of the world especially the China where
our listing in HKSE affords us close tie to. Thirdly, the use of the rooms
also allows KIS to conduct International sporting activities which will
again enhanced the reputation and branding of Kingsley in Asia.

Il.  Kingsley Multipurpose Hall, Swimming pool and Gymnastic facilities
The specially constructed hall equipped with specialise laminated floor
allows Kingsley to conduct international sporting event. The very first
of which was the International Kukkiwon Taekwando Event which was
very successfully held. The hall also boast a capacity for 6 badminton
courts and a state-of-the-art basketball venue. Together with the
Olympic sized swimming pool and gymnastic facilities this allows KIS
to conduct new extra-curricular activities.
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Kingsley Language House

Kingsley Language House which is critical
when we intake more foreign students as
well as allowing our current students to
learn important foreign languages such
as Mandarin, French and Spanish will also
be housed in one of the floors of the new
building.

Kingsley College

Kingsley College will be relocated from its
previous location in shop lots to the state of
the art KIS Annex Building. Class rooms are
allocated on one of the floors in the building
and facilities will be shared with KIS. This
will ensure that all facilities will be fully
utilise as it is used by several entity rather
than a single one. In partnership with the
Malaysian Government Education Sector
Kingsley will work in partnership with state
owned University as a Learning Centre
of the University. This will allow Kingsley
College to conduct accredited Degree,
Masters and PhD programmes. This opens
up massive opportunities to attract students
from the region to our education institution.

Kingsley Residential Hall

B, ERKISHIMNREINRERETES, TFOKISHE
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Kingsley Language House
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Kingsley College

Kingsley College7 M HE5ERIRIRE SHME R BR STIERIKISHHT
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DURING THE YEAR IN REVIEW, KIS RECEIVED “5-STARS” CERTIFICATION FROM THE MALAYSIAN MINISTRY
OF EDUCATION IN RECOGNITION OF EXCELLENCE IN CLASSROOM MANAGEMENT, ACADEMIC DELIVERY AND

RESULTS ACHIEVED

RERFE, BRADHEESE [ D2K | BEFKIS, LIREKISEREEZEE . XTSI NUEMRSEAEMEER

In short, we have been busy in the last 12 months,
laying a strong foundation for future growth. Our
success thus far has been rooted in our ability to
equip our students with the right knowledge, mindset
and values by laying a strong academic foundation,
one that is amplified by experiential learning models
that nurtures an enterprising mindset. We were also
relentless in our efforts to bolster and upskill our
educators to ensure they are equipped with the right
knowledge, tools and innovative techniques to guide our
students with activities that enhanced their learning
curve.

We have also progressed in our Tertiary education
sector as our partnership with state owned university
is well accepted in the China as state owned University
is recognised by the China Education Ministry. The
business opportunity is already evident in the recently
signed agreement with Weifang Institute of Technology
("WIT"), China where WIT will initially send their staff
to read PhD in Kingsley College. This will later include
Masters programmes for graduates of WIT under-
graduate programmes. WIT is only but one such
university to sign-up with Kingsley College on such
programmes as more are in the pipe line.

Our efforts to transform teaching and learning practices
was further acknowledged by the industry. During the
year in review, KIS received "5-Stars” certification
from the Malaysian Ministry of Education in recognition
of Excellence in Classroom Management, Academic
Delivery and Results achieved. In the recently released
IGCSE examination results we also saw an increase
of more than 150% of students achieving A and A* as
compared to the same examination last year.
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GOVERNANCE

At Kingsley, we place strong emphasis on a culture of
good governance as this strengthens confidence as well as
promotes integrity and trust. We are committed towards
operating in accordance with best practices to uphold the
highest level of ethical conduct, accountability, transparency
and sound risk management systems as recommended by
the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules.

As a result of our efforts, we achieved 1S09001:2015
certification for our ability to consistently provide quality
services that fulfil all stakeholder requirements.

&ia
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SUSTAINABILITY

Sustainability has always been part of Kingsley's approach
in management and operation. We believe in being a positive
influence to those around us, no matter how small it may be.
Since our establishment, we have focused our sustainability
efforts on environmental and social issues, ranging
from world hunger to providing aid to the less-fortunate
communities and even, wildlife conservation actions.

Across all our activities, we focused our actions to ensure
it impacted positively on the development of quality human
capital. Here, it was not just about the act of reaching out
to help but also, ensuring our stakeholders understood its
importance and the rationale behind our actions as this
helped in inculcating positive values such as empathy,
respect and compassion throughout Kingsley. In this regard,
we worked to ensure that all our students, faculty, employees
and even the larger community including parents took part in
our outreach activities.

A ERR
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Chairman’s Statement
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LOOKING AHEAD

In an increasingly competitive global environment, we
recognise that quality education has become an important
tool to help nations realise their transformative efforts,
as it can help generate higher incomes, create better jobs
and foster entrepreneurship - factors that can strengthen
economic growth.

The education outlook in Malaysia is very positive as in
the Malaysian Government Budget announcement, it was
revealed that the Education Ministry received the lion’s
share with an allocation of RMé60.2 billion, emphasising
the critical importance of education in Malaysia moving
forward. Backed by supportive policies introduced by the
Malaysian government which encouraged the establishment
of international schools in Malaysia, we believe that student
enrolment in international schools in Malaysia is expected to
grow at a CAGR of 15.2% between 2017 and 2021, while in the
state of Selangor where Kingsley is located, it could reach
44,808 in 2021, from only 10,615 in 2012. Malaysia is a popular
destination for local and international students because of
the quality of academic programmes provided in the last few
decades. It is also a popular destination for international
students who want to pursue secondary education given the
use of English as the medium of instruction, the wide variety
of curriculum available, a well-established international
school system, lower tuition fee and cost of living.

With the demand for quality international schools increasing
across the region, we will build on this upward momentum
and continue to focus on increasing our international student
enrolment by engaging with partners across Asia, namely
China, Hong Kong, India, Vietnam and Cambodia, emphasising
strongly on our new boarding options and facilities at the new
KIS Annex Building. We strongly believe that education will be
one of the key drivers for economic growth and human capital
development, both in Malaysia and across Asia. Guided by
our experienced management team at Kingsley, we remain
centred on achieving our strategic objectives and build on our
competitive advantage.

| am very optimistic of what we will achieve in the coming
year as we have put in place strong foundations that will drive
sustainable performance in the long run. We have raised
the bar to accelerate efforts to deliver on plans which have
already been put into motion. Henceforth, | am confident
of our ability to cement our position as a provider of higher
quality education in Asia.

www.kingsley.edu.my @é
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WITH THE DEMAND FOR QUALITY
INTERNATIONAL SCHOOLS INCREASING
ACROSS THE REGION, WE WILL BUILD ON
THIS UPWARD MOMENTUM AND CONTINUE TO
FOCUS ON INCREASING OUR INTERNATIONAL
STUDENT ENROLMENT BY ENGAGING WITH
PARTNERS ACROSS ASIA, NAMELY CHINA,
HONG KONG, INDIA, VIETNAM AND CAMBODIA.
| AM VERY OPTIMISTIC OF WHAT WE WILL
ACHIEVE IN THE COMING YEAR AS WE HAVE
PUT IN PLACE STRONG FOUNDATIONS THAT
WILL DRIVE SUSTAINABLE PERFORMANCE IN
THE LONG RUN.

AR BE =S EEEFERAITRIB, KPS
sz LrEeE, WEmdEmM (RIFREN. FEH
TE. E. SEkREE) BAalF, EEFIN
?”HSZE&IB,TEE BMEEEREEREGEH LT
&, PATRRERE—FELZXERS.

Backed by
supportive
policies
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On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow Directors, our
experienced management team as well as our dedicated team of teachers and employees for your
unwavering support and commitment. We would also like to extend our heartfelt gratitude to our
valued stakeholders - our shareholders, students, parents, suppliers, financiers and government
authorities - for your continued trust in us.

For us at Kingsley, we are transforming the education sector for the sake of future generations. As part

introduced by
the Malaysian
government,
student
enrolment in
international
schools in
\EIEVSERE
expected to grow
and could reach
44,808 in 2021.
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of the broader strategy in driving quality education services, we remain committed to deliver a holistic,
real-world education experience to our learners as this will not only empower them but also create a
new generation of entrepreneurial achievers.

Looking forward, we are very clear on our strategic priorities. We are well-positioned to capitalise on
new growth opportunities, drive performance and ultimately, deliver on long-term shareholder value.
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Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon (JP)
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFTRE DN

ESTABLISHED IN 2010 AND LISTED ON THE GEM OF THE HONG
KONG STOCK EXCHANGE ('STOCK EXCHANGE") ON 16 MAY
2018, KINGSLEY EDUGROUP LIMITED PRINCIPLE ACTIVITIES
TOGETHER WITH ITS SUBSIDIARIES COLLECTIVELY ARE
FOCUSED IN TWO KEY AREAS, NAMELY NURSERY TO A-LEVELS
AND FOUNDATION PROGRAMMES AT KINGSLEY INTERNATIONAL
SCHOOL ("KIS”) AND TERTIARY EDUCATION PROGRAMMES
THROUGH KINGSLEY TERTIARY INSTITUTIONS.

SRS RETERATNN20105E/7, WH2018FE5816HRES
B3ZFr ([ B32Fr | ) GEM BT, ELEEMBATNFEEEFETR WIERR
groEl, AIRESEMRER ( [KIS | ) IZHEEREA-leve GRIZ R TER R

12, UNBBEXsSHEHIBRUSTFHETE.

Dr Chua Ping Yong
ZkEiEt:

President & Executive Director #8538 {75==

Since 2011, we made good progress in delivering
quality education services in Malaysia. Our
efforts saw strong growth in Malaysia and
branching across the region beginning from
our efforts in listing our Company in the Stock
Exchange.

B201ME#E, HAEBRARRMEERSRBSENERY
ER. ZB5H, HAEBRASERRIMER, BHFRE
P EmREE, AEEEZIERNEBAMER.

BUSINESS MODEL

Given the steady growth experienced in the
private education services industry in Malaysia
and the region, Kingsley has emerged as an
established private education service provider
in Malaysia with a proven track record and
strong growth potential. At Kingsley, we
believe that holistic education is important in
cultivating a new generation of entrepreneurial
achievers equipped with the right knowledge,
skills, leadership qualities and strong values
that will help them realise their potential in an
increasingly connected environment.

Guided by our long-term goal of becoming an
established private education service provider
in Asia, our efforts were anchored on delivering
on our strategic objectives, which are essentially
built on two key pillars - Kingsley International
School (“KIS”) and Kingsley Tertiary Institutions.

st

BRADNRENRHABRBITEECRERE, 22005
e RIFEARYIERENNBRARNE RABIRE
HEs . ESRELEAEEIEEEEERNG. X8, 88
FERRREERNT—EERIFERER, SIFEMKRER
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Core Business Component What We Do

Bl SRS AHREER S HEFIRTHE

Kingsley International School Kingsley International School (KIS] is a well-established school known for scholastic
SR excellence, effective learner-led education coupled with a strong culture of character

building. Located in Subang Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia, we offer education from Early Years
up to International General Certificate of Secondary Education (IGCSE) O and A levels. We
have recently added foundation programmes to our suite of programmes. Our school is
Cambridge-certified, consisting of a progressive teaching and learning community. We are
focused on strengthening our brand and to be one of the leader in the education sector in
Asia. We are passionate and dedicated in revolutionising this education sector for the future
generations.

SLEEER ([ KIS | ) R—EMEAR, LSHERRSE, S¥NREEaRERIIaRHRISER N AMEE . 2
AR SMEMNBED, RENBEEREBPRLREURIGCSE) ORA level# B . HMRIEERZESTIINT
TERRIE . HIRERIERS, SIEMEHEAE . RIBORRERMNRE, HENS EMEEEEEZ—. HIE
ERAREENAE, WHItRENE.

Kingsley Tertiary Institutions Focused on providing cradle to career education, Kingsley Tertiary Institutions consist of

ERESHEE Kingsley Language House, Kingsley Skills College, Kingsley Professional Centre, Kingsley
Strategic Institute and Kingsley College. Armed with various relevant accreditations, the
Kingsley Tertiary Institutions offer Technical Education with Skills Training (TEST), Technical
and Vocational Education and Training (TVET); and also, leadership development programme,
all of which are focused on developing enterprising mindsets and new skills that will allow
learners to remain relevant
EYSEHEHIBETRNIRMHE4E, ©EKingsley Language House. Kingsley Skills College. Kingsley Professional
Centre. Kingsley Strategic Institute}&zKingsley College . BELABTEBRIZE, KingsleySSHBEHIBIRIERINHBE LIRS
A [TEST] ) | #iligEE ( [TVET] ) ; UREEHEERR, IERREaRRAEG IR, 2%
BHBE(FA.

As the first Malaysian-based education service provider to be listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange,
we strengthened our key business segments by the construction of the KIS Annex Building of which
the construction was completed in the fourth quarter of 2018. Together with the KIS campus building
which was completed in September 2015, we offer an educational hub with a total floor space of
more than a million square feet. We have also completed new partnerships, established new learning
approaches and also strengthened our teaching faculty during the period under review. Despite the strong growth
highly competitive environment, we took actions to strengthen our competitive advantage for future in Malaysia
growth. and branching
across the
(ERERTEHRPTGEM LR BIRTE T B RS ALER, HFIBIREEKISHEAEINERMRIRIREE DB, ZAIE20185F5EM region beginning
FEET. NE2015F9B B THKISKEIRT, BfRENEETOREREERA—TEFIER. REREE, BrHEming from listing our

SIERIR, SETHNEESE, WIBATRMNMENS. BERFHZ, BANAFRKIZRREUTEINBEGRFES. Company in the
Stock Exchange.

Our efforts saw

Ri@ss, FHPESR
A BIRaYIEE, B
IREESRRT EiRea, A
SEEZIEAIZERS
BETER.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW B EIRE
Revenue Wik

Revenue of our Group for FY2019 was approximately RM31.0  AEBER2019UEEENKRIR31.058SE, BHREE20185F6F30H1E
million, representing an increase of approximately 3.3% B ([ 20188HFRE |) (94I30.0EE <SS IEINAT3.3% . FFINEIREMEE
from approximately RM30.0 million for the year ended W EREAEE R [0 () BIPREA R i) S B B I (i1 B BB RO S AE IR B IR TS .
30 June 2018 ("FY2018”). Our revenue generated from — ZFERTZEBEREMESSEES.

tuition fee collected from our students and from ancillary

services provided to our students of our (i) international
school, (i) tertiary education and (iii) other. Such increase
was predominantly contributed by our international school
segment.
2019 & 2018
RM’000 ¥4 RM’000 ¥
International school Epsea: 28,824 29,865
Tertiary education E&#s 127 142
Other &t 2,047 -
Total @zt 30,998 30,007

Year ended 30 June #Z6830HILEE

2019 2018 &
RM’'000 % of revenue RM’'000 % of revenue
*H S ET=Pa)na oH (L E DL
Tuition fee 2ag 18,642 60.1% 21,201 70.7%
Ancillary services BEiR#S 10,309 33.3% 8,806 29.3%
Others Hits 2,047 6.6% - -
Total @t 30,998 100.0% 30,007 100.0%

Our Group’s revenue from tuition fee represented approximately 60.1% of its total revenue for FY2019 as compared to that of
approximately 70.7% for FY2018. The decrease in revenue from tuition fee was mainly attributable to the new introduction of
discount scheme for FY2019 in response to competition presented by newly formed international schools in Malaysia despite
student number increase.

Tuition fee is initially accounted as contract liabilities and only recognised as revenue progressively when the education services
are provided during the academic term, and that the period from July to August is the summer holiday period, during which no
education service is provided and accordingly no revenue from tuition fee is recognised during that period. This is consistent
with previous reporting year.

Our Group’'s revenue from ancillary services represented approximately 33.3% of its total revenue for FY2019 as compared to
that of approximately 29.3% for FY2018. The increase in revenue from ancillary services was mainly attributable to the increase
in student enrolment at KIS.

Revenue from others represented revenue generated from event business.

REEREERERINT (520198 BIF AR EE4060.1% , 20188 EIFEAU70.7% , EBESEABUENN, (BAEE BRI A EMERART, AEBNR201981KF
EFRSINIT0ETE), S BEKasR P AIER

SENSINWEENEE, ERBPRELBERBISSEEERAKE, MTAEARER, PETSRENERYS, BHSAHEKETSEZAEHR ., B8 E—RE
F-H.

REBERE R EIRFFAINER (520198 B AR 4033.3% , 201887 E4929.3% . ZREECEMRISAMERIBINEZERE I KISIRE AZUEND.
HthaI s R B R TS A LA .
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cost of revenue and gross profit margin

The majority of our Group’s cost of revenue primarily consists of teaching staff cost,
depreciation of property, plant and equipment and other operational expenses.
The cost of revenue increased by approximately 16.6% from approximately RM14.5
million for FY2018 to approximately RM16.9 million for FY2019 which was mainly
due to increase in teaching staff costs in preparation for the anticipated increment
in student number for the new academic year, as well as increase in subject
options and co-curricular activities.

As a result of the foregoing, our Group's gross profit decreased from approximately
RM15.5 million for FY2018 to approximately RM14.1 million for FY2019. Our
Group’s gross profit margin decrease from approximately 51.7% for FY2018 to
approximately 45.5% for FY2019.

BEETWNE DT

WEs R A R ERE
AEERBOKEAATE DTS I . WE.
S e T BN EIER S . e AN 201887
BFELQ14 AR HIEMNL16.6%E 20198 EFE
£16.988°E, TRRHEMIMA. HEEERZS
INEENSBIEIN, EEE T EEETEE HEINRY
24,

AEBERBAIH2018BEEN155BESS
RO E2019HEFEELLIBBSE . AEBEF
RE201 88 BUEELI5 1. 7% /D E 2019 BEEL
45.5%.,

Other revenue and gains
Our Group’s other revenue and gains remain consistent from approximately RMé6.3

EAthg N\ Reiias
REFERIEMIIN WG RIT—E, H20188IFE

million for FY2018 to approximately RM6.4 million for FY2019. 19496 3E B S HIBME 2019V EEFEI6 4T EL
Selling and distribution expenses HER D HERX

Our Group’s selling and distribution expenses increased from approximately RM0.4
million for FY2018 to approximately RM0.8 million for FY2019. The increase was
attributable to additional advertising in response to competition presented by newly
formed international schools in Malaysia.

AEBHEN S HEFMZH2018 BEELN0.L4HES
EEINE2019MBEEN0EESE .. ENEE

BRI R MR B AR ae T Al M B A AR TR AL
EBINES .

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses of our Group had been decreased from approximately
RM16.8 million for FY2018 to approximately RM14.3 million for FY2019. The
decrease was mainly due to non-recurring listing expenses recognised during
FY2018 partially offset by the increase in other administrative expenses during
FY2019.

THEIZ
NEETIBI 201884 I EL16. 8EE ST R
E2019HFEN14IBBCE .. FMEDEZHR
2018 B EMERIRAE R 1 E RIS 17201984 B
R TR IR INERDHEE -

Finance costs
Our Group’s finance costs remain consistent at approximately RM3.4 million for
both FY2018 and FY2019.

BRERA
REBERBEN AN 2018 B FE R 2019 K FEY
RIF—H, BOSLAEBSE.

Income tax (credit)/expense
Our Group recorded income tax benefit at approximately RM0.1 million for FY2019
and income tax expenses at approximately RMO0.1 million for FY2018.

FriSie (18%) /B
AREERL 2019 B FEIREATSRAELN0. 158
=, R20188 FEEEFEMH a%ﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁmo.@%v

=+=
Ho

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company increased from approximately
RM1.5 million for FY2018 to approximately RM2.3 million for FY2019. The increase
was mainly contributed by the decrease in non-recurring listing expenses
recognised during FY2018.

AATER A LiEF

RATEE NELENEH2018HBEEN1.585S

FENE2019MEELN2.358E8SE .. ZIERTD
FEHBRER 2018 B FERERICE M RIS

N
b
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEETRNE DN

Dividend
The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year
ended 30 June 2019.

www.kingsley.edu.my @Q

B2
ERTAEEEZE2019F6 8300 LEFEEREE KA
e,

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

Our Group has funded the liquidity for FY2019 and capital requirements primarily
through internally generated fund from operating activities and proceeds from the
Listing.

As at 30 June 2019, our Group has total cash and bank balances of approximately
RM6.3 million compared to approximately RM35.2 million as at 30 June 2018.
The decrease was mainly due to the utilisation of net proceeds received from the
Listing to pay construction cost, renovation and purchase of facilities for Annex
Building. The borrowings of our Group as at 30 June 2019 was approximately
RMé66.1 million as compared to approximately RM87.5 million as at 30 June 2018,
representing a decrease of approximately RM21.4 million. This decrease was due
to loan repayments during the year.

The gearing ratio of our Group as at 30 June 2019 was approximately 87.1% as
compared to approximately 128.3% as at 30 June 2018. As a result of the increased
equity following the Listing, our Group’s gearing ratio had decreased.

mEES . MBERREREE
AEBFEEBNICE TBEENEE R LR
BHIEA2019KFERSNEENERFEKZHE

[R20195F6 308, AEBIRERIRTHEREENA
63EESHE, 2018F6H30HR35.2EECE. 4
WD TAEEH SIS F AR EAIE
R ERIURREREERIE, AEBR201954
6B30RZEBHN A 1TEEST, 2018568
30HAIAAR87 SEEBSE, BENRLL21.48ES
Ho MR THRERNEFRSENE

AEER2019F6B3I0ANEABBLLRGE
87.1%, 20185F6530H%1%5128.3%, HIR LHER
REIEIN, AEBNEAGEETR,

Treasury Policies

Our Group employed a prudent treasury policy and generally financed its
operations and businesses with internally generated funds, equity and debt
financing denominated in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM”) and arranged on a floating-
rate basis. It is our Group’s policy not to enter into any derivative transactions for
speculative purposes.

BRI

REBRBERNEBER, W—RUNPEEE
. UBRADSE ( [$F | ) sHELRFEF=
FTENRENEBRERHEENREBREES . K
BMER, AEBETSREMETEUNTERS.

Capital Commitments

Our Group’s capital commitments primarily relate to the construction of KIS Annex
Building. The following table sets out a summary of our capital commitments as at
30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018.

Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment g% . BERBHEHRE

BEARERE
AEBNERNFIEEZEPEKISHBIEER. T
EHPIFMIFL 2019565300 K 2018FE6H30HE
REEE

2019 & 2018 &
RM’000 &%

RM’000 4¢3

1,564 10,649

Contingent Liabilities
Our Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2019 (2018: Nil].

HREE
AREEMR2019F6F0FHEMEALAERE (2018
F: 8\,

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The functional currencies of our operations, assets and liabilities are mostly
denominated in RM. Therefore, our Group is not exposed to any significant
foreign exchange risk, except for its Hong Kong Dollar ("HKD"] denominated bank
balances. Our Group did not engage in any derivatives agreements and did not
commit to any financial instrument to hedge its foreign exchange exposure during
FY2019.

MR BR

BAEE. EERBBEEUSCEE. B, IR
BITEHMERITEN, AR EERECERINE
R . AEBEIESEEATETERZ, IR
sELME DR R T EERER 20198 B F EANER,

55
8 o
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Employee and Remuneration Policies

As at 30 June 2019, our Group had a work force of 194 employees as compared with
173 employees as at 30 June 2018. Total staff costs for FY2018 and FY2019 were
approximately RM11.0 million and RM14.0 million, respectively. Remuneration is
determined with reference to market terms and the performance, qualification and
experience of individual employee.

Significant Investment Held, Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries
and Associated Companies, and Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital
Assets

There were neither significant investments held as at 30 June 2019 nor material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries during FY2019. There is no plan for
material investment or capital assets as at 30 June 2019.

Events After the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2019
The Board is not aware of any significant event subsequent to 30 June 2019 and up
to the date of this report.

Use of Net Proceeds from the Listing

The issued ordinary shares of the Company were successfully listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange on 16 May 2018 (“Listing Date”) at HK$0.40 per share. The
proceeds [net of listing expenses) were approximately RM31.4 million. As stated
in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Company’s
prospectus dated 30 April 2018, the Company intends to continue to apply the net
proceeds in accordance with the proposed allocations set out below.

Since the Listing Date to year ended 30 June 2019, the net proceeds had yet to be
utilised as follows:

Use of net proceeds FrigsiiEsiamis

Settlement of fees for constructing the KIS Annex Building #& KISk & A azER A
Renovation of the KIS Annex Building #{sKiskiB Az
Purchase of facilities for KIS Annex Building i EKiSKiBAiZ:z

Total #zt

EEEHRRH

(BERFEBER

[£20195F 63300, AEBFEG1945EE, 201856
B30E5B1732RE ., 20188 KEEN2019HBEE
HETHABES OB IBBESERILIEES
Ho FMSEMBERUREBERR . BEREHRM

.
AEo

BERE . EARBRHEENBARREEATR
BEAIREHEFEEIRNKEE

[R20195F6 B30 HIMEERIRE, 20198/ BFE I
RS, BRERENBEAT. 1K2019965308
I ERERREELEEE,

BHE20195F6H30H LA FEEEIE
[R2019F6 B30REREEANRERE, EFZIUAR
HRTIEAEIE,

EFSHRIRFERERE

TR HETEBRMIING20185F58168 ( [ £
THER | ) RER0.40BTAEMIGEM L. Fif5
FIE (B LR ) AR31.4EEOT . #MUAR
NEIAEAR2018F4 A30HAYRREREN [ RIKETE
RPSFIRRE | —8PmA, AABETEMEEIR T
PhatiEss D B EBATS s IRF4E..

E EmHEBEEZE2019F6F308EFE, TS
SIRFEREAEIA:

Amount of Amount Balance

net proceeds utilised up to as at

allocated 30 June 30 June

upon listing 2019 2019

(RM million)  (RM million)  (RM million)

BE20195% 1220195

R EAY 68308 68308

FRSFIEFEE CERSE Ry4EER
(BRSE (EESH (EESH

12.0 (12.0) -

15.0 (12.8) 2.2

4.4 (1.4) 3.0

31.4 (26.2) 5.2
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEETmNE DT

GIVEN MALAYSIA'S STRATEGIC
POSITION, BACKED BY A STRONG
ECONOMY, POLITICAL STABILITY
AND THE WIDE-USE OF ENGLISH
AS A MEDIUM OF INSTRUCTION,
THE GOVERNMENT FOCUSED ON
POSITIONING MALAYSIA AS AN
EDUCATION HUB IN SOUTHEAST ASIA
FOR PARENTS SEEKING FOREIGN
EDUCATION FOR THEIR CHILDREN.

FEARPI S, AR, BUAREM
EZERREHENIT T, BNEERST
LERINEH BN EHEBRA TSN DR
A EFTL .

www.kingsley.edu.my @@

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Across the Asian region, the private education services continued to
experience strong growth as the fast-growing middle-class segment were
increasingly aware on the importance of a well-rounded education. Given
Malaysia’s strategic position, backed by a strong economy, political stability
and the wide-use of English as a medium of instruction, the government
focused on positioning Malaysia as an education hub in Southeast Asia
for parents seeking foreign education for their children, setting a student
enrolment target of 75,000 by 2020.

To this effect, international schools in Malaysia received strong support from
the Malaysian government in recent years, including provision of Investment
Tax Allowances for international schools by the Malaysian Investment
Development Authority ("MIDA”) and removal of 40% enrolment cap for
Malaysian students in international schools since 2012 which resulted in
significant increase in student enrolment at international schools.
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KINGSLEY INTERNATIONAL SCHOOL (KIS)

Strengthening our position as a high-quality education service provider,
backed by strong student performance

At KIS, we understand that education today is not just about textbooks and
deriving knowledge from teachers, but instead, allowing children to attain
their full potential through 21st century experiential learning facilities and
technologies. We know that parents are looking for a progressive education
curriculum that encourages critical thinking and problem-solving skills
through a combination of co-curricular programmes that complement their
children’s learning experience.

Given these developments, it has indeed been an exciting period for KIS. Since
2013 where we had only 429 students, we continued to experience strong
student enrolment, growing to beyond a thousand students for FY2019. In
terms of international student base, as at 30 June 2019, South Korea and
Japan ranked as our top two sources of overseas students with China and
India catching up fast to Japan. During the year in review, KIS received
“5-Stars” certification from the Malaysian Ministry of Education in recognition
of Excellence in Classroom Management, Academic Delivery and Results
achieved.
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The growth experienced was mainly due to the strength of our academic
programmes and quality teaching across our core subjects, namely Math, Science
and English at both Primary and Secondary schools. Our ability to enhance
students’ academic experience has benefitted our students as evidenced in
the recent released IGCSE results we saw an increase of more than 150% of
students achieving A and A* in the O-level examination as compared to the same
examination last year. Our graduates who have achieved 8A* and 9A* in their
Cambridge IGCSE have been accepted to some of the prestigious universities
worldwide such as University of Nottingham, University of Bath, London School of
Economics and Political Science, University College London in United Kingdom (UK],
Royal College of Surgeons in Ireland, University of Wisconsin and University of
the South in United States (USA] , University of Calgary in Canada, York University
and University of Queensland in Australia, University of Otago in New Zealand and
University of Hong Kong.

Apart from academic pursuits, our students have also demonstrated strong
achievements in other activities where they emerged as Gold Medal in Skate
Malaysia 2018, Asian Junior Figure Skating Challenge 2018/2019 in Hong Kong
Category: Basic Juvenile Girl Group 1, Sea Figure Skating Open Challenge
2018/2019 in Bangkok, ISIAsia Skate Shenzhen, Abu Dhabi International Skate
Championship, 14th ISI Asia Skating Beijing 2019, Champion in Negeri Sembilan
Table Tennis U13 Boys Team, Gold Medal in 29th Selangor Age Group Swimming
Championship 2019, Gold Medal in World Scholars Cup Debate, Champion in
American Latin Dance Competition, to name a few.
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Delivering added value with the
completion of the KIS Annex Building
As part of its expansion plans,
KIS moved into its new campus in
September 2015 which comprises of
one 10-storey block with a total of 104
classrooms and facilities that aid in the
holistic development of our students.
With a maximum capacity of 2,600
students, we had a total of more than
a thousand students enrolled at KIS
during the year under review.
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PERFORMANCE
HIGHLIGHTS

Since 2013 where we had only 429
students, we continued to experience
strong student enrolment, growing to
beyond a thousand students for FY2019.
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Together with the recently completed
facilities in the KIS Annex Building which
consist of dormitory rooms, multi-purpose
rooms (which consist of workshops,
computer laboratory, audio visual (“AV”)
room, lecture hall, multi-purpose hall,
etc.) and facilities (which include the
Olympic-sized swimming pool, gymnasium
and gymnastic training facilities) which
will be fully operational in September 2019
we believe that Kingsley will move up to
the next level of providing high quality
education with high quality facilities,
uniquely located on a hill overlooking a
residential area in the capital city center
with a 27 acres green belt at the foot of the
hill complete with outdoors facilities and
with two light rail transit stations nearby.
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Our graduates have been accepted
to prestigious universities worldwide
such as University of Nottingham,
University of Bath, London School

of Economics and Political Science,
University College London, Royal

College of Surgeons, University

of Wisconsin, University of the
South, University of Calgary, York
University, University of Queensland,
University of Otago and University of
Hong Kong.
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The Consolidation of our education business in now possible with the completion
of the new facilities, turning Kingsley Hills into an educational hub. From here
new revenue streams is currently being developed some of which is already
coming to initial fruition. These new development include the following but not
limited to;

Kingsley Residential Hall

With room available for more than 600 beds, Kingsley Residential Hall
affords opportunity for multiple development of our education business.
Firstly, it serves as the dormitory rooms for KIS current overseas and out of
state students. This also allows KIS to aggressively recruit foreign students
as previously this was not possible as we could not house them in our own
facilities. We are very optimistic that the percentage of foreign students
will indeed increase in the coming year and for future intakes. Secondly,
the rooms also serve for us to participate in student mobility programmes
and student exchange programmes. These programmes will enhance the
reputation and visibility of KIS in other parts of the world especially the China
where our listing in HKSE affords us close tie to. Thirdly, in the use of the
rooms also allows KIS to conduct International sporting activities which will
again enhance the reputation and branding of Kingsley in Asia.

Kingsley Multipurpose Hall, Kingsley Swimming pool and Gymnastic facilities

The specially constructed hall equipped with specialise laminated floor
allows Kingsley to conduct international sporting event. The very first of
which was the International Kukkiwon Taekwando Event which was very
successfully conducted. The hall also boasts a capacity for 6 badminton
courts and a state-of-the-art basketball venue. Together with the Olympic
sized swimming pool and gymnastic facilities this allows KIS to conduct new
extra-curricular activities which generate new streams of revenue.
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iil. _Place for Special Needs Children
One of the floors of KIS Annex Building has also been developed in partnership with a group of specialists to handle kids
with special needs. This is in line with KIS motto of We Care at Kingsley. The partnership generates another new stream of
revenue in the form of profit sharing.
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iv. _Kingsley Lanquage House
Another floor is also allocated for the Language House which is critical when we intake more foreign students as well
as allowing our current students to learn important foreign languages such as Mandarin, French and Spanish. Kingsley
Language House will serve not just KIS students but also all who seek language training as well as other entity from the
tertiary education sector. This will form another business which can be develop into several revenue streams.

<

Kingsley College

Kingsley College will be relocated from its previous location in shop lots to the state of the art KIS Annex Building.
Classrooms are allocated on one of the floors in the building and facilities will be shared with KIS. This will ensure that all
facilities will be fully utilize as it is used by several entity rather than a single one.
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Kingsley Language House
S—IETrHE4EKingsley Language House, EBHEMRNESNINBESEFEEZLESLE ZBE . A8, ANSESEEINEMSEBEE. Kingsley
Language House MERKISHBELRRTS, TMAMBESXESEIINALURSSHEREMSBIRMURTS, SIMEMIERS, TLIERMETWRNR.

V. Kingsley College
Kingsley CollegeZMEHEsCRIREIHIRBEIRTERIKISHIBAIE . HEREXENEP—/E, 1EERIEEEKISHEFR . SEEEHARESEERTERENE
EFEHHA.
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KINGSLEY TERTIARY INSTITUTIONS

In line with our cradle-to-career education framework, we have also developed the Kingsley Tertiary Institutions which consists
of Kingsley Language House, Kingsley Skills College, Kingsley Professional Centre, Kingsley Strategic Institute and Kingsley
College. - all in the early stages of development.

During the year in review, we have forged strategic partnership to further enhanced the programmes that we offer. In
partnership with the Malaysian Government Education Sector, Kingsley College will work in partnership with state owned
University as a Learning Centre of the University. This will allow Kingsley College in partnership with the University to conduct
the accredited Degree, Masters and PhD. This opens up massive opportunities in China as all Malaysian state-owned University
is recognised by the China Education Ministry. The business opportunity is already evident in the recently signed agreement with
Weifang Institute of Technology ("WIT"), China where WIT will initially send their staff to read PhD in Kingsley College. This will
later include Masters programme for graduates of WIT under-graduate programmes. WIT is only but one such university to sign
with Kingsley College. A number more are in the pipe line which will quickly occupy classroom spaces and dormitory spaces in
the new building.

Through Kingsley Strategic Institute (KSI) we provided advisory services which include government relations, economic
research, policy advocacy, leadership development and strategic planning.

Among the high level programmes KSI has organized and managed in the year under review include:

e The World Chinese International Conference on Sarawak and ASEAN, 1 Nov 2018, Kuching
e Business and Economic Forum, 9-10 Nov 2018, Kuala Lumpur

e The Asia Economic and The Malaysian Healthcare Summit, 7 Mar 2019, Kuala Lumpur

e The National Conference on Industry 4.0, 21 Mar 2019, Kuala Lumpur

e The National Housing and Property Focus Summit, 23 April 2019, Kuala Lumpur

e The National Education and Learning Summit, 25 April 2019, Kuala Lumpur

e The Malaysian Banking and Finance Summit, 2 May 2019, Kuala Lumpur

e New Sabah Forum, 18 June 2019, Kota Kinabalu

e Entrepreneurship Forum, 20 June 2019, Kuala Lumpur

e The ASEAN Community Leadership and Partnership Forum, 23-24 June 2019, Bangkok

KSl is also the Secretariat for the Economic Club of Kuala Lumpur which aims to promote dialogue and discourses on economic
issues and challenges. In addition KSI is also the Secretariat for Dialogue Rakyat a Network Of organizations which promote
National Unity, Race Relations and Religious Harmony. KSI also works closely with the CSO-SDG Alliance to promote the UN
Sustainable Development Goals and co-organize several Round tables with the Alliance. These activities enhance the branding
of Kingsley in Malaysia and Asia.

Our Group also continues to look for suitable investment opportunities both locally and in overseas markets with smart
partnerships as evidenced in our recent voluntary announcement made on 5th December 2018 on the memorandum of
understanding (MOU] in relation to the possible acquisition of a target company in Hong Kong who is in the education business
and on 5th March 2019 on another MOU for possible acquisition of another target company also in Hong Kong. Both MOU
has not materialized yet into final acquisition due to non-synergy of education direction. However, we continue to explore
other businesses as part of our efforts to diversify and broaden our revenue base over the longer term. Our pursuit of smart
partnership with other higher institution in Malaysia who are recognised by the Ministry of education in China so that our tertiary
institution can conduct programmes that will attract students from the China have now come to fruition.
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During the year in review, we have

forged strategic partnership to
further enhanced the programmes
that we offer.
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How Kingsley Manage Risks

Given the nature of its business, Kingsley has put in place rigorous risk management procedures to ensure it achieves its
strategic objectives and drive performance. The Group's financial position, results of operations and business prospects may be
affected by a number of risks and uncertainties directly and indirectly pertaining to the Group’s business. The following are the
key risks and uncertainties identified by the Group.
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Risk How Kingsley Manage Risks
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Inability to expand the business in the Asian We established various procedures on feasibility studies and project collaboration as
region guidance to study risk appetite, review project viability and ensure sustainability prior
SETET M R A RS embarking to business expansion. We have been regularly seeking for reputable partner for

any possible collaboration and partnership project.
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Reliance of a single source of income We have reviewed the strategic business plan with focus on the growth of other entities.
U N 3] We have been regularly seeking for reputable partner for any possible collaboration and

partnership project. The Group shall review the business plan on annual basis to re-act with
immediate action whenever necessary.
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Future Prospects

We have made good progress in the last 12 months. In recognising the importance of education in driving human capital
development, attracting foreign direct investment and fuelling economic growth, the Malaysian government is expected to
increase its annual expenditure in this segment continuously between 2017 and 2021 at a CAGR of 1.2%' reaching RM61.6 billion
in 2021. In light of this, we believe that student enrolment at international schools will reach more than a hundred thousand by
2021 from less than thirty thousand in 20122,
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Taking advantage of the uptrend in the private education services segment, we believe it presents a wide breadth of
opportunities for us to fortify our position as a leading private education service provider in the region. As KIS has been
identified as one of the key growth drivers for the Group, we will focus on increasing our student enrolment and target to have at
least 300 KIS boarders at our residence located in the new KIS Annex Building in the next two to three years, consisting of both
international and out of state students. We believe that the new facilities which includes accommodation, sporting amenities
and activity rooms at the KIS Annex Building will not only be a strong key attraction for both local and international students,
but also add new revenue growth streams for the Group. This is evident in the student exchange programmes and International
event already held at our venue. Many such events are in the pipe line and will form an important new stream of revenue.
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Page 11, Malaysia International School Education, Tertiary and Professional Education Market Study, Frost & Sullivan 2017.
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Page 25, Malaysia International School Education, Tertiary and Professional Education Market Study, Frost & Sullivan 2017.
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Other than business through KIS we have also consolidated our education
business with the completion of the KIS Annex Building, turning Kingsley
Hills into an education hub. Together with smart partnerships we have
increased the programmes offered by KIS through the availability of
facilities for special needs children and in the near future more foundation
programmes to Europe to add on to the current Foundation Programmes
conducted in partnership with the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology
(RMIT) which leads to Universities in Australia. We are also currently
relocating the Kingsley Language House in the newly completed building
as we see the natural growth of this business with the increase in number
of foreign students in our institutions as a result of the availability of
state-of-the-art facilities and accommodation. We are currently at the final
stages of completing the relocation of Kingsley College to the KIS Annex
Building as well and have already signed an agreement with Weifang
Institute of Technology ("WIT") a degree awarding Institution approved by
the China ministry of education, where WIT will send students to Kingsley
College for post graduate programmes. Together with student mobility
programmes we believe these businesses will result in the enrolment of
another 300 short-term and long-term boarders at our residence.
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To achieve increased international student enrolment, we will continue
to work with overseas partners to attract students from East Asia and
other countries in Southeast Asia. By 2021, we hope to have more than
500 of international students in KIS from the current 301 as we believe
that our new boarding facilities will enhance our competitiveness in
attracting international students. Currently, only 35% of the international
schools in Malaysia offer boarding facilities while research has shown that
international students generally prefer international schools with boarding
facilities as it is more secure and convenient.
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In the Tertiary sector through strategic partnership we are working with
state owned University as a Learning Centre of the University. This allows
Kingsley College in partnership with the University to conduct accredited
Degree, Masters and PhD. This opens up massive opportunities in China as
all Malaysian state-owned University is recognised by the China Education
Ministry. The business opportunity is already evident in the recently signed
agreement with Weifang Institute of Technology (WIT), China where WIT will
initially send their staff to read PhD in Kingsley College. This will later include
Masters programmes for their graduates. WIT is only but one such university
to sign with Kingsley College. A number more are in the pipe line which will
quickly occupy classroom spaces and dormitory spaces in the new building.

We will also optimise our efforts to increase the number of quality
teachers at KIS as they have a key role in maintaining our high-quality
educational programmes and services. Our partnership with the
state-owned University will also give opportunities to our teachers to
study for Masters programmes at the location of their work place and at
discounted fees. This will allow us to take a further step forward in the
development of our teachers.
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In short, we have done an exceptional job in
the last 12 months. Despite the constantly
evolving landscape, we continued our efforts in
redefining the education sector by designing new
development programmes that will empower
future learners to challenge conventional
thinking and solve real-world problems. We
put in place a capable team that is focused
on delivering results based on the strategic
priorities set out. Backed by the growing demand
for quality private education services and our
ability to design holistic education environments,
we believe we are well-placed to achieve our goal
of becoming an established private education
service provider in Asia.

Moving forward, we remain confident in our
ability to pursue our aspirations from a position
of strength, drive performance and deliver on
long-term shareholder value.
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Thank you
B!

Dr Chua Ping Yong
President & Executive Director
gkEBiEt wismvEs
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TAN SRI BARRY GOH (JP)

Chairman, Executive Director

Tan Sri Barry Goh, aged 55, is an executive Director and the chairman of our Board.
He is primarily responsible for formulating the overall development strategies and
business plans and overseeing the management and strategic development of our
Group. Tan Sri Barry Goh is the brother of Dato” Danny Goh.

Tan Sri Barry Goh has over 20 years of experience as an entrepreneur in various
businesses including education, property development and construction.

Tan Sri Barry Goh established our Group by setting up our principal operating
subsidiary, Kingsley International in 2010, together with, among others, Dato’
Danny Goh, our executive Director. Tan Sri Barry Goh subsequently expanded
our Group through establishing Kingsley International School (through Kingsley
International), Kingsley College (through Kingsley Graduate], Kingsley Professional
Centre (through Kingsley Professional] and Kingsley Skills College (through
Kingsley Skills).

Tan Sri Barry Goh has been the executive advisor to the TARcian Alumni Association
of Tunku Abdul Rahman University College (now known as Tunku Abdul Rahman
University College, “TAR University College”) since May 2016. From September
2013 to September 2017, he has been a member of the Board of Governors of TAR
University College, where he was responsible for the governing and policymaking
of the university. He, as a member of the Board of Governors, has also undertaken
key roles in providing strategic planning-oversight of the educational character
and mission of the university, promoting efficient management of the university,
fostering global linkages and internationalization in relation to higher education
and research, as well as developing links with the community, corporate sector
and industry. He has also assisted with the implementation of the university’s
constitution, laws and policies.

Tan Sri Barry Goh has been a director of MCT Berhad since April 2015, and Odenza
Corp., a mining company quoted on the over-the-counter markets in the United
States with the symbol ODZA since February 2013. He has also been and an
executive director of BGMC International Limited (stock code: 1693), a construction
services company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since November
2016.

Tan Sri Barry Goh graduated from TAR University College with a Diploma in
Technology (Electronic Engineering) in July 1990. He furthered his studies to
pursue a master’s degree in business administration at Tsinghua University’'s
PBC School of Finance in September 2017, a part time course which is due to be
completed in July 2019.

www.kingsley.edu.my @é
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DR. CHUA PING YONG

President & Executive Director

Dr. Chua Ping Yong, aged 54, is our President & executive Director. He is primarily
responsible for the overall growth and development of our Group.

Dr. Chua Ping Yong has more than 27 years of experience in the education field.
Prior to joining our Group as senior vice president in May 2015, Dr. Chua Ping Yong
had been employed at TAR University College from July 1990 to September 2013,
where he has undertaken positions of instructor, lecturer, senior lecturer, head
of division and head of school. Since October 2013, Dr. Chua Ping Yong had been
the dean of the Faculty of Engineering and Built Environment at the TAR University
College, where he was responsible for the management of staff and resources. Dr.
Chua Ping Yong was also responsible for overseeing administration and providing
academic leadership, such as strategic planning, developing policy and providing
overall leadership, vision and direction for the faculty. These include strategic issues
related to the challenges and opportunities of new academic structures, students’
expectations and performance, widening participation and recruitment. He has
also undertaken key roles in academic planning and decision-making. He was
also responsible for strategic management where he took the lead in driving the
faculty’s strategic response to internal and external challenges, staff management,
where he evaluated and determined the training needs of the staff, management of
resources and research initiatives.

Dr. Chua Ping Yong's educational background expands across the fields of science
and engineering. Dr. Chua Ping Yong was awarded the Diploma in Technology
(Electronic Engineering] from TAR University College in May 1990. He later obtained
a Master of Science degree in Industrial Control Systems from the University of
Salford in the United Kingdom in July 1993, prior to completing the Engineering
Council Examination organised by the Engineering Council in March 1996. He then
continued his education in the University of Salford, United Kingdom, obtaining the
degree of Doctor of Philosophy in April 2007.

DATO’ DANNY GOH

Executive Director

Dato” Danny Goh, aged 51, is our executive Director. He is primarily responsible for
overseeing the corporate development and strategic planning of our Group. Dato’
Danny Goh is the brother of Tan Sri Barry Goh.

Dato” Danny Goh has over seven years of experience in the education industry
strategic planning. In December 2010, Dato” Danny Goh was appointed as the
director of Kingsley International and was involved in the establishment of Kingsley
International School. In October 2013, Dato” Danny Goh was appointed as directors
of Kingsley Skills and Kingsley Professional Centre and was involved in the
establishment of Kingsley Skills College and Kingsley Professional Centre.

Dato” Danny Goh is also a strong advocate for Chinese education. He was involved
in the fund raising for the construction of the new SJK(C) Union in Cyberjaya,
Malaysia, a union that caters to the Chinese education needs of students from
different racial backgrounds, in May 2016. Dato” Danny Goh graduated from TAR
University College in May 1992 with a diploma in technology (building).
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PROFESSOR DR. ROZAINUN

Independent Non-Executive Director

Rozainun, aged 59, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of
the company in April 2018. She is primarily responsible for providing independent
advice to our Board. She is also the Chairman of the Board Audit and Risk
Committee, and a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

Rozainun is a professor of management accounting with more than 30 years of
experience in the education industry. She has held various administrative positions
at the Universiti Teknologi MARA (UiTM] in Malaysia. She is currently the Chairman
of UiTM-Salihin Teaching Accountancy Firm (TAF), and was the Dean of the Faculty
of Accountancy from 2012-2017. She has brought the Faculty to QS ranking, being
the first Faculty to penetrate the honour at #151-200, and top 5 universities by
subject for Accounting and Finance in Malaysia, for two years running 2016-2017.

Rozainun is a board member of the National Savings Bank of Malaysia since 2017.
She is the Vice-President for the ASEAN Accounting Education Workgroup (AAEW),
and the Malaysian Vice-President for the Alumni Committee for Aberystwyth
University, Wales, UK. She is an external examiner for Sunway-TES and external
moderator for HELP University, Kuala Lumpur.

Rozainun received the Trailblazer Award at the European Women Payment
Network (EWPN) in Amsterdam on 4 June 2019. Earlier, she was awarded with the
Golden Globe Tigers Award ‘Best Professor of Accountancy’ in April 2019. Last year
in August, she was recognised by CMO Asia Education Excellence and received the
Education Leadership Award in Singapore.

Rozainun obtained her Diploma in Accountancy from UiTM in September 1981.
Afterwards, she pursued for the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants
(CIMA] qualification in the United Kingdom and successfully completed the
examinations in 1986. In September 1996, she obtained a Master of Economic
and Social Studies in Accounting and Finance from the University of Wales,
Aberystwyth. In January 2005, she obtained a Doctor of Philosophy from the
University of Salford in the United Kingdom. She is a qualified chartered accountant
and a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (MIA]; and for two terms,
she has served a council member (2013-2017). She became a fellow of the CIMA in
June 2013 and she is also a fellow member of the CPA (Aust.).

www.kingsley.edu.my @é
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TAN SRI SALLEH

Independent Non-Executive Director

Tan Sri Salleh, aged 69, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
of the company in April 2018. He is primarily responsible for providing independent
advice to our Board.

Tan Sri Salleh has over 39 years of experience in the education industry. In 1980,
he was appointed as a lecturer in the Department of Medical Microbiology and
Immunology, Faculty of Medicine, National University of Malaysia ["UKM"), where
he was promoted as head of department and served as deputy Dean until 1992. In
1992, he became the founding Dean of Faculty of Allied Health Sciences at UKM
and was also appointed as the professor in medical mycology. From 1995 to 2002,
Tan Sri Salleh served as the deputy vice chancellor for development affairs and
student affairs. From 2003, he served as UKM's vice chancellor until he retired
in 2006. In 2006, Tan Sri Salleh was appointed as the Founding Director of United
Nations University’'s International Institute for Global Health until his retirement
in 2013. Tan Sri Salleh was also appointed as a board member of SIRIM Berhad
since 2004. In March 2014, Tan Sri Salleh was appointed as the vice chancellor
of Manipal International University. Tan Sri Salleh was awarded a Doctorate in
Science (Honoris Causa) from the University of Bath, United Kingdom in July
2012. In October 2015, he was awarded an Honorary Doctorate in Health Sciences
from Univesiti Sultan Zainal Abidin in Malaysia. As of 2019, Tan Sri Salleh is a
member of the Professional External Advisory Committee (PEAC) of International
Medical University (IMU), Malaysia and a member of National Defence University of
Malaysia’s Board of Directors (UPNM). Tan Sri Salleh is also Chairman & Academic
Advisor of Spectrum Education Group.

TAN SRI KARIM

Independent Non-Executive Director

Tan Sri Karim, aged 69, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
of the company in April 2018. He is primarily responsible for providing independent
advice to our Board.

Tan Sri Karim has over 44 years of experiences in both the government and
the corporate sectors. From 1974 to 1986, he had held positions in various
governmental departments. In 1987, Tan Sri Karim had been the Chief Assistant
State Secretary of Selangor (Local Authority Division). From 1992 to 1998, he was
the president of Ampang Jaya Municipal Council. He had served as the District
Officer and the Acting President of Sepang District Council from 1998 to 2003. In
2003 and 2004, he had been the President of Petaling Jaya Municipal Council.

Tan Sri Karim has also made various contributions in the corporate sector. He has
previously been the group president of Kumpulan Darul Ehsan Berhad (KDEB), a
Government Link Company(GLC) that is an investment arm of the Selangor State
Government. He had also been the chairman of two companies listed on the Main
Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad, namely Kumpulan Perangsang
Selangor Berhad (stock code: 5843), and Taliworks Corporation Berhad (stock
code: 8524), between 2004 to 2011.

Tan Sri Karim obtained a Bachelor in Economics from University Malaya in
Malaysia in June 1974 and a Master in Business Administration from University of
Edinburgh in the United Kingdom in May 1989. In July 1980, he obtained an advance
diploma in Economic Development in the Victoria University of Manchester (with
distinction) in the United Kingdom. Tan Sri Karim also completed a course in urban
development organised by Japan International Cooperation Agency in Tokyo, Japan
in March 1986.
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Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report
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KINGSLEY STRIVES TO CREATE
POSITIVE VALUE NOT ONLY TO
SHAREHOLDERS BUT ALSO TO
STAKEHOLDERS AND CUSTOMERS,
THE GROUP BELIEVES BEING SOCIALLY
RESPONSIBLE AND ACHIEVING A HIGH-
QUALITY CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP
WOULD BE MUTUALLY BENEFICIAL TO
THE GROUP AS WELL AS THE SOCIETY
THE GROUP IS OPERATING IN.
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ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

We are pleased to present this Environment, Social and Governance (ESG)
Report which have been prepared to comply with requirements set forth in
Appendix 20 ESG Reporting Guide of the HKEX GEM Listing Rules (the "ESG
Guide”] for the year ended 30 June 2019.

The Board is responsible for the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting
including evaluating and determining our ESG-related risks and ensuring
that appropriate and effective ESG risk management and internal control
systems are in place.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of education services.

The Group strives to create positive value not only to shareholders but
also to stakeholders and customers, the Group believes being socially
responsible and achieving a high-quality corporate citizenship would be
mutually beneficial to the Group as well as the society the Group operating
in.

The Group recognises the importance of sustainability and its increasing
impact on the business.
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Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report

In Kingsley, we believe that the principles of and actions to promote sustainability
should be embedded across the Group in all aspects of the Group’s operations and
other activities. It is the Group’s objective to create a culture of sustainability within
the Group, and the community, with an emphasis on integrating the environmental,
social and governance considerations into its decision making and the delivery of
outcomes arising from its decisions and action.

To achieve this, a structured ESG governance process that drives our sustainability
strategy from top management right across all operational levels within Kingsley
was established. The good governance framework applied was to ensure
environmentally responsible practices and the creation of sound social policies.
This would enable sustainable growth and long-term value for our shareholders.

In the preparation of this Report, we engaged with various employees across the
different business functions at Kingsley to identify the relevant ESG issues and
its impact on our business. The information gathered for the purposes of this
ESG Report does not only serve as the summary of the environmental and social
stewardship of the Group for FY2019, but also forms the basis for the Group to map
out our short-term and long-term sustainability strategies.
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It is the Group’s objective to create
a culture of sustainability within
the Group, and the community,
with an emphasis on integrating
the environmental, social and

governance considerations into its
decision making and the delivery of
outcomes arising from its decisions
and action.
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>We believe that being socially
responsible and achieving a high-
quality corporate citizenship would be
mutually beneficial to the Group as
well as the society the Group operates
in.
EMEEEEHEEERIBHET RIFIEIERE
BEAEENAEBSERELRIER.
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Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report
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Emission and Use of Resources
Given business nature of the Group is services-oriented, we do-not generate The following table summarise

hazardous or toxic waste in the course of our business. The direct impact of the Group’s chemical consumption
for the year ended 30 June 2019.

TRA T AEEHZE20195F68308 LEFEE

emission to the environment is immaterial.

The Group does not have significant air emission and discharges into water except L i €

the non-hazardous solid and liquid waste generated from our daily operation such

as general waste from office and disposal from laboratory for science lesson. Solid Chemical
waste (g/cm)

HER R RS ERE RS 52/ K

ENFEEGERIE RS, RIS TR A ELASNEY . IR EEYE 6,674.8

HrRE.

FHESEEENEEERRREESEY (UHAEN—RESVRNEFNEREREY ) 5, FEEL

SRR BEER AU B 2 0 1 9

During the year under review, we complied with all applicable environmental Consumption volume
laws and regulations, and was not subject to any fine, penalty, investigation or (Group) as at 30 June
prosecution for non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations relating to HR20195E6 H30HHY
emissions. RS (A5ER)

We constantly work to identify new avenues to minimise our impact on the
environment. The Group implemented numerous energy-saving measures and

environmentally friendly initiatives in the workplace including the following: Liquid Chemical waste
(mU)
REMEFER, BMETHREEANRREEENER, WETSREREBHMIEREERRER MRS ?Uﬁgg—??—’?%ﬂ[%ﬂ]

. R, AETRE.

BATERSASHINRE, UESROHIBENTE ., AEEE THEEENSIBEasE iIRREHE
BFE:

The electricity consumption and the usage of papers
represented most of the Group’s carbon footprint,
which is mainly attributed to the lighting and air-

Replacing LED light tubes
Inverter-based air-conditioners and electrical equipment
Switch-off electrical items where not in use

- Double-sided printing, recycle and reuse of printed paper conditioning of the Group’s daily operation. The
- Encourage the use of software-based systems to minimise printing water consumption is immaterial as the Group's
- All prin_ting machines used were m_onitorgd to ensure sustainable use business model does not rely heavily on water
- Eco-friendly salt water chlorination swimming pool Usade
- Student educated in organic farming and making of organic ge.

enzyme
— ERLEDEE The following table summarise the Group’'s use of
- FRSETRA N BEER RS resources for the year ended 30 June 2019.
- ETFRNTEEEE
e BNEE RSB A SRR RIS, BAEBERN
- SENMERR G RFRLIRDTIED o R
— EAERE (SRR R T S AEEHEEENRALTHE. BR ZK%.E)J%%%ETEEWERQ
- FRARREEKER FEFK, BELFAKEMARE.
- R EEARAER RN BRI EYE S BRI
There was no non-compliance case noted in relation to environmental FEMA T A=A E201966 830 A LHEE LS EMNER .

laws and regulations for the year ended 30 June 2019.
2201956 330 H IEFEIMFMNE TRV EE L ERBER .
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Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Report
BR. H8@Rk&ERIESGIRE

Consumption volume (Group)
for financial year ended

30 June 2019

#ZFE20195F6530H1E

Resources categories &;EER] HRERLNER (528 )
Water m3 3A5% 13,251
Electricity &5 kWh FEE 1,596,186
Paper 43 kgs Afr 9,395.7

Employment and Labour Standards

The Group acknowledges and highly regards employees are the most valuable assets and it has been the core for the
Group’s continual success. Towards this cause, we strived to cultivate the best talents through creating a healthy workplace
environment, fair opportunities for career development and to remunerate all employees equally according to skills, experience
and performance. The Group also advocates work-life balance.

Throughout the Group, we are guided by our Human Resource Policy, as documented in the Governance and Internal Control
Policy (GICP) and Employee Handbook that governs the recruitment, promotion, discipline, working hours, compensation,
benefits and other matters, in accordance and compliance with the Malaysian Labour Act and others laws and regulations.

(B R 55 T#ER
FEFFRRERFEENEE, WETSENE, BRE-—BEATEEFEMINZL. REBRE—BER, HMASBAERENTFRERATRIBERRERER
BEREFNAT, WiRERE. KR FEREETIRMTFEERM . RERMEET(FREENTE.

BESEELMRIR BRI RN EMFRERTENADEREEE (&R NEMHEHEERCICPILIR S TFMPAms ) REMEREIE. . LR, TIFNE. 7
B tER R EMEIE.
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The following table summarise the information of
breakdown of our workforce by category:
TRIZERRIMDA T BRRME T o 3EE

Number of Employee (Group) for financial
year ended 30 June 2019
#ZE201956 8308 LB BFERNS T( A5EE )AH

Sales & Marketing $5E R4 9

Administrative 7 58

Management &1 9
Teaching Staff & T 118

The following table summarise the information of
staff turnover rate by workforce category:
THRIRE TR T BRE TiRAFNER

Turnover Rate in % (Group) for financial
year ended 30 June 2019
HE201956 B30H LA BFERIRAET S (AEH )

Management &12 0.14

Teaching Staff @ T 1.48

Sales & Marketing s 24 0.14
Administrative 17 0.8

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the staff turnover rate of the Group
was approximately 2.56%.

There was no non-compliance case noted in relation to employment
laws and regulations for the year ended 30 June 2019.

RELE2019F6BI0R IEFE, AEEAIS TMAERLI2.56%.
EZE20195F6 300 IEF R NE FRE SR ARAVER .

Health and Safety

At Kingsley, health and safety standard are given prime consideration in
our operations and regulatory compliance is strongly upheld. Employees
at every level must be accountable in the delivery of the safety initiatives
as stipulated in the Employee Handbook, with a view of maintaining an
injury-free culture.

The Group had complied and implemented workplace health and safety
guidelines and recommended practise including but not limited to
following initiatives:

availability of 24-hour security guards and closed-circuit television
(CCTV) throughout the building

- conducted various campaigns to promote awareness and additional
safety trainings, ie. Fire Drill/Fire Evacuation Practise, Basic Life
Support, First Aid training

- encouraged our employees to lead a balance lifestyle, ie. Yoga class,
health talk during Personal, Social, Health and Education (PSHE)
lesson

There was no non-compliance case noted in relation to health and safety
laws and regulations for the year ended 30 June 2019.

BRRZE
AES

2%, RENZERERRMNEENEETRER, BUBRSESEESR. SBRETY
L EHPITETFMTIRENZEEE, SEMESREENX.

y

REBETWENRT TIFSMERN L2 ERLUNERIIME, SEETFIRIIUTEE:

- TEKIENRH2A/NHRZ R ER

- HRSEEIHLRSZEEHMMESEINZEE, BEDEE ERRER. &
BRI

- SEESHEESFENEES, BRERIEEREA. HE. RRELH
TEHARIRY R e

B(PSHE):E

EZE201956 B308 IEFEWEZINETREET2XE N FRIER.
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Development and Training

The Group acknowledges the importance of training for the development of
our employees as well as the Group. In order to succeed in both personal and
professional capabilities, employees need to have the opportunity to upskill
themselves as this will enable them to remain relevant.

In Kingsley, we provide regular training and workshops for further enhancing
their skill set and assisting career development of employees. As an education
service provider, we need to have teacher or mentors who are equipped with
latest in teaching and learning approach. In this regard, we implemented training
programme to boost teaching upgrade and development, and strive for excellence
in teaching culture as our work objectives, training schemes and orientation for
new teachers, teacher observation session, professional development programme
and etc.

Ris. 8 RERIESGIHKE

BRI
REEFREEREDEZEEERREEEE.
BENMFIEIFERSRAECS, RTEBHLEE
K, FEEEA RS2 LEUSRTI.

SLRHERENIRIERL, LE—SRSEEN
REEW IR BN R SHIEER . RIERSBBRHBEML
fER, BEEARARIEUET S EIHENERT .
FEIETSE, BT SE(REREF R RS
E, WEHITESMAIRBEWERIMIIER
R, DRAIHLENEIEFIEBINSE), LHEHENER
ET, HESXEERTEE.

The following table summarise the information of total training and development completed for year ended 30 June 2019:

TEREDA T EZE2019F6 3300 ILF EERIE B REEBERIER

Total Training and Development completed for financial year ended 30 June 2019
#2019 6 B30 H L EAF B RIS RS ER

4.2

14.2

Number of
Staff Trained
(Group)
FisT

691.25

Average 3.4
Training Hours
Completed

SRk SRR LIRS

27.7

(FE£E) AH

93

5.9

M Sales & Marketing $HE R & B Administrative 17 W Management &18

Supply Chain Management

Due to nature of our business activities, the Group relied on various suppliers to
provide quality products and services to our employees and students. The Group
adopted a prudent approach in selecting suppliers, evaluate suppliers including
meeting with potential suppliers to understand their products and services and
business operation.

The Group had established and strictly observing the guidelines and procedures as
accordance to Group's Purchasing Policy as stipulated in our GICP and necessary
approval authorities as stipulated in our Authority Manual. Essentially, we adhered
to high ethical standards and fair competition practises during our procurement
processes. We performed annual performance evaluation for supplier to ensure
they continuous delivering the quality services.

Total Training
Hours

Completed
SeRE S AR 4R RSRE

1,582

Average
Staff Trained
(Group)
EHSENET
(@)

48%

821.75

M Teaching Staff T

e EE

REBE, FEREESERERREMNETR
BERMBEENERRRE . AEBRAEIESENL
B, FHMEAER, BERREEMERSEIL T BEE
BRI EBEESER .

REBIRIRGICPATIR EAIEBIIRIS BRI AR
BFERES I RAEFLAR [ #EIRFM | PRENLE
HiER. BE L, RfERERMETIETSER
BRERNTERFAME . HPIEIHIERIETEEERN
AHE, RS ETR AR SRS
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The following table summarise the information of number of suppliers by
geographical and their performance rating for year ended 30 June 2019:

TERER T #ZE20195F6 300 IEFERRIRIE N FRIRTH B DAL EREB &R :

Number of supplier (Group)
for financial year ended
30 June 2019

#2201956 830 1LRABERE

Geographical its HERHHE (FER )

Malaysia FEzpEas 231 96.25%
Oversea g4t 9 3.75%
Total wzt 240 100%

Ranking Supplier Performance in %
Hi2 (Group) for financial year ended
30 June 2019

#%201956 530H LLEIBERE
FRERRMHERHGL (%M@ )

4 — Excellent & 1.33%
3 — Good g4 76.55%
2 — Moderate —fi 19.91%
1 — Poor &= 2.21%
Total #5t 100%

During the year under review, we did not receive any report in the implementation of
the Group’s Purchasing Policy.

RAFE, HAIREEITIERAEBIRBECRERIIHRS .

Product Responsibility

The Group is principally engaged in provision of education services which is the
highly regulated industry. In Kingsley, we ensure the educational programme
are adhered to the various requirements, we worked to obtain the necessary
accreditations, namely International General Certificate of Secondary Education
(IGCSE]), Malaysian Qualifications Agency (MQA], Code of Practice for Programme
Accreditation (COPPA) and Kod Amalan Pentaulihan Program Kemahiran (KAPPK).
To improve quality, the Group have experienced and well-trained teacher and
counsellors who are able to assist our student.

The Group has set-up a complaint handling procedure for handling customers and
student feedback and complaints. The Group will review complaints on a regular
basis to strive to improve our services. Understanding customers’ need is the key to
provide the best possible customer experience.

EmEE

AEEBFBREHER, Z2TEIISERL ., ELRELEHEER/SERE, AL, BFMBHESY
B0, MESESETEHEESGCSE). BRAEEMEIKEERIMAA). Fi2BEESRE(COPPAILIK
Kod Amalan Pentaulihan Program Kemahiran (KAPPK), Z12FtmE, AEERELLIRIEERLHRYE.
Bl ZSERNE GIISE 1=

FEFCROGRRERS, UREEFRSENRERRH . 2EESEPRTIRF, SHUERE. 77
ERHERHREREEFERM=EREE.

www.kingsley.edu.my @‘)

Privacy Protection Policy
The Group highly respect personal
data privacy and are firmly committed
to preserving the data protection
principles. The Group strictly adhered
to the PDPA Act and has established
the privacy protection policy as
highlighted in GICP to regulate the
collection, processing and using any
stakeholder’s, students and parents’
personal data, including:

- we only collect personal data
that believed to be relevant and
required to conduct our business;

- we will not transfer or disclose
personal data to any entity unless
with the consent or unless it is
previously notified or unless it is
required by the laws;

- we maintain appropriate security
systems and measures designed
to prevent unauthorised access
to personal data; and

- we prohibit unauthorised
disclosure of any classified
information such as confidential
information pertaining to
legislative, academic, financial
and various other factors.
Systems have been established
to protect classified information
such as restricting access to only
authorised employees, records
of recipients of confidential
documents are well-kept and use
of strong passwords to protect
computer data.

FARSHERREICR

FEFSESERAEGHARE, WEEESH

RETFEMRERE, AEBREETEAS

FHRFEIL(PDPA), I05237GICPHEFARIFARER

HEER, LURBIKE. RIBRERETR wE

B . BERRRIVEAERN TS, BF:

- EPENERSEBREERERAEVEN
BAER

- BRIEREABHSERRE, BRMAERE
BENER MRS OISR EK
EEAZERL

- BMESEENRZRGREE, LBILE
RNAFHRBUSTEREAER, R

- EMRIPRERRREEOEEER, W
BREZES. 8. BBRAMELNRE
B, ZMERURSBREREER, 0
IREEMIAFERERET. ZERE
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Whistle Blowing Policy

The Group promoting a culture of high integrity and greater
transparency, the Group has adopted a Whistleblowing Policy which
highlighted in the GICP. This policy provides employees of the Group
and stakeholders an avenue to raise concerns regarding suspected
fraud, wrongdoings and malpractices without being subject to
victimization, harassment or discriminatory treatment. We do this to
encourage and enable employees to raise serious concerns within
the company, instead of simply ignoring a problem as this could
impact the company negatively. We will endeavour to respond to
employee concerns, fairly and properly based on the established
Standard Operating Procedure.

SRR

NEEHRMEEREAIN, WERF T GICPHEAMERIRECE . ZBERARNEBRER
FIEERS R T R, TUEPHINGE. TERTARTETRELEE, Mg
HtEE. BREEEERKRIETE. HAFERRICREESRIES, FRSR5IN
RRBNRERVIEE, MIFRIREE, RIRMESH A TERaETE. KIMEEh
EEREsERE, RIEFREISERFEFRIATFEENTER.

Integrity Policy

Across the Group, we adhere to the high standards of ethical,
personal and professional conduct, guided by our Integrity Policy
in our GICP and Kingsley Code of Conduct ("Code of Conduct”). The
Code of Conduct provides clear guidelines on positive workplace
practised.

At Kingsley, we have zero-tolerance towards any behaviour that
impact the integrity and reputation of the Group. We also do not
tolerate corruption, bribery, extortion, money laundering and other
fraudulent activities in connection with any of our business operation

BiE. £t2RERIESGIRS

SR

TEALEER, BFUKIECICPHIEECER2521947RTE ( [ 7B
Bl ) BESEZENERE. EARBETRELR, TATHHIERT
{RIBPTBHIRT ERBEIES |

ELBIBRTEREEHENBEN TR . RIS TERETTES
BAES. B, 9K, HEREMEGPER.,

Anti-Money Laundering Policy

The Group committed to highest standards of
openness, uprightness and accountability and all
staffs are expected to observe the highest standards
of ethical, personal and professional conduct. The
Group has zero-tolerance in any behaviours that
may cause impairment to integrity and ethicality.
The Group are guided by our Anti-money laundering
Policy in our GICP and Kingsley Code of Conduct
(“Code of Conduct”).

RiEBEBEER

REEFNREIERSRIEIER. RIERDSEEZE, BERGET
HETER. BAARBETANRSRE. AEEETAIEEEE
ERERZIBNTRSTARRE, WBERMAIGICPHAIRIEER
BERNES097RFE ( [78F81] ) .

Community Investment

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group place
strong emphasis on cultivating social responsibility
awareness among our students and employees
as these activities encourage them to serve our
community at work and during their personal time.

HEHRE
FREERNREFEE, FAEERADSENREESHEEIE
i, THEZE R RS L ERFAN R RI R AR MARTS .
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During the year under review, we organised several outreach programmes as below: -

HPIREIRREEE I N SIEINERTE):

Event =gt Date g

@ Fund-raising 12t May -
project to 20t October
Shelter Home 2018
AShelter Homessg 201855812 -
ELMER 105208

ogo Charity Sales 3rd to 4th
2018 July 2018
2018FRERE 2018%F7H3H -

7B6H

” Christmas 29t October -
@

Caroling - 30t November
Beautiful Gate 2018
HOSTAEER — 25P9 2018510829H —
114308
@ Charity Bazaar 26t January
BERH 2019
20195615265
gﬂg Ape-ril 1st — 30t April
Ape-rilsasg 2019
201954818 -
4B30H
i Famine 8 Hours 11t May 2019
BEEITENS/ NS 2019558118
i Orang Asli 1st - 28 June
Donation Drive 2019
FRIEEIEER 201956 H1H -
6528H

MOVING FORWARD

Beneficial Party sz

Shelter Christian
Fellowship for Aid and
Welfare Selangor
ERRIEEN AR FEERT
EEEEZ

Society for the
Prevention of Cruelty to
Animals (SPCA]

B LEEAF BN (SPCA)

Beautiful Gate
Foundation for the
Disabled and Montfort
Boys Town
EPEEREESE NSRS
25177

World Vision Malaysia
N =l

Sarawak Forestry
PHUTBAREIER

World Vision
HRSHEE

Orang Asli (Ipoh, Perak)
BEE (1AR. EE)

Details 15

Organised by Kingsley International School’s
Interact Club, total donation of RM2,000 for

this organisation.
S EEMRE SR AR (Interact Club) 3%, Aizid
#8ki5A82,0009%

Organised by Kingsley International School’s
Scouts Brigade, total donation of RM655.70
“Cat Cage Enrichment”.

SLEPRERAVEFE I, A [ Cat Cage Enrichment |
4BEH808655.70%F

Christmas carolling performance and

donation of food items.
LN SN A=E =1

Raise fund of RM8,888 for World Vision and

sponsorship of one child.
RUREPZELES 8BOEEN, —BREBEIE.

Total 7 of Orang Utan adopted by staff and
students of Kingsley International School.
SRR E TERBAEIMEE TTR AR,

Total donation raised of RM1,529.75 for this

organization.
RZARIERE1,529. 759 -

Donated 28 boxes which consists of clothes,
milk powder, toothpaste, toothbrushes, school
bags, diapers, etc.

1BIL28TERENIR. . FB. IRl 8. RHE.

The Group recognises that sustainability is an ongoing and evolving practice in creating long-term business value. We will
continue to embark on our sustainability journey to better define the governance and oversight of our sustainability programme
through greater refinement of our structure and the identification of more discrete goals. We strive to continue monitoring the
sustainability performance of the Group. The Board will also consider the need to implement other sustainability practices as
appropriate to further enhance the long-term economic, environmental and social value.

REERR

FEERHDIHEERRFEN N ENESNEE, JRISRIEREE. RISEERREUISERRIIK, SREIFTERENECENEINER, BifithiE
EUFEERENEaREE . RIEESHRBEEAEENTIFERRER . EFTVEEEROTENBEEREMAIFERRME, NE—SRARIKE.
RIENHEEE.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is committed to achieving
high corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are essential in
providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the interests of shareholders,
enhance corporate value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and
enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”] contained in Appendix 15 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “"GEM Listing Rules”).

As the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 16 May 2018 (“the Listing Date”], the Company has since then adopted
and during the year ended 30 June 2019 (the "Relevant Period”], complied with the
CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “required standard of dealings” as set out in Rules
5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code regarding securities transactions
by Directors (the “Model Code”).

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the Relevant
Period.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the "Employees Written
Guidelines”) no less exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions
by employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive
information of the Company. No incident of non-compliance of the Employees
Written Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance
and should take decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a Director to
perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and whether the Director is
spending sufficient time performing them.

Board Composition
The Board currently comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon (JP] (Chairman)
Dato” Danny Goh Meng Keong

Dr. Chua Ping Yong

AT
TtEEARS

fREaEn
FATEEE ([ E58 | ) NHRRECEELE
#,

BETHE, RFNEESEREHRBARLTRE
HEZRLMRIEARE RS . 1R E3EEE. SIEETHR
BRI HEREREEEM=EREE.

ARNBEEREBHERZMERAD ([ Bz
BTl ) GEMES Eh#RAI ( [ GEM_EMARAN | ) By
BT AESATA ([ RESATH | ) AENR
AR SFANESZ

ARAXIRS ( [BH ] ) 1K20185F5816H
( [ EF5EER ] ) EESSFRGEM BT, ANEBH L
T HEBR RN R SR E 20196 530 H LEEEE ( [ 18
BHRRT | ) B EEa<Tal,

ETES LB AEESTRI

KNTB)CERANGEM ERAIEE5. 485 6 TIRFRE, [ 32
SIRTEIEE |, (FAEBETEERZNTE ( [2Z
#FE] )

REMBEESH P EERER, EFCHEIRSNE
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Prof. Emeritus Tan Sri Dato” Dr. Mohamed Salleh Bin Mohamed Yasin
Tan Sri Dato’ Hj Abd Karim Bin Shaikh Munisar

Prof. Dr. Rozainun Binti Abdul Aziz

The biographical information of the Directors and relationships between the
Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors’ Profiles” on pages 26 to 29
of the Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2019.

The relationships between the Directors are disclosed in the respective Director’s
biography under the section “Directors’ Profiles” on page 26.

Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance Records

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year involving active
participation, either in person or through electronic means of communication, of a
majority of Directors.

During the Relevant Period, the Directors” attendance records are as follows:

Name of Directors
EENS

Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon (JP) Bire2stre LipmATa+

Dato’ Danny Goh Meng Keong ==k

Dr. Chua Ping Yong =ik&f#+

Prof. Emeritus Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Mohamed Salleh Bin Mohamed Yasin*

LR HREE 2B Mohamed Salleh Bin Mohamed Yasinf&t*

Tan Sri Dato” Hj Abd Karim Bin Shaikh Munisar* f#fEe%2Hj Abd Karim Bin Shaikh Munisar*
Prof. Dr. Rozainun Binti Abdul Aziz* #3ZRozainun Binti Abdul Aziz{#+*

Note:
*  Attended in the capacity of proposed Independent Non-executive Director.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive are held by Tan Sri Dato” Sri Goh
Ming Choon and Dr Chua Ping Yong respectively. The Chairman provides leadership
and is responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of the Board.
The Chief Executive focuses on the Company’s business development and daily
management and operations generally.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the Relevant Period, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three Independent
Non-executive Directors with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

www.kingsley.edu.my @@

BIFHITEF

SEMIEERE 2 Mohamed Salleh Bin Mohamed
Yasinf&t

FHEFEE=EXHj Abd Karim Bin Shaikh Munisar

% Rozainun Binti Abdul Azizf&i+

BENEREHNNEE BHBERENEZ20195F
6B30FILEENERF26E29E [ /N | —
B,

ERTENBERE26E [ ESEN )
FIEETREE .

—BEiTMEREE

EFTTENEFHFERE
BEETREBFETELONREN TS, BERBOES
BB HFEBEFEM I ARIBS A,

IRIERREAR), ERAILERCERAT

Attendance Attendance
at board at general
meetings meeting
EREESHEE BREXEHEE
5/5 11

5/5 11

5/5 11

5/5 11

5/5 11

5/5 11

PiRE:
* LB VIR TTEF G (I -

EERATHAEH
FERATEHEEAEN D B R RS B i B R AP
REKERTEE. TFEEERAGEEFTIIENE

1ERAES . TEAEHEIANSEBERNASEE
NEREEE,
BIAITES

MIERIHAR], ERE—HIETOEM EHRAAHRE,
EERS =BT ERMET —SEEaEE
EERN TR BEEEER,
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The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are appointed for a
specific term of three years, subject to renewal after the expiry of the then current
term.

The Company’s Articles of Association provides that all Directors appointed to fill
a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first general
meeting after appointment.

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not three of a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. The retiring Directors shall be eligible
for re-election.

Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and provides
direction to management by laying down strategies and overseeing their
implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and financial performance, and
ensures that sound internal control and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including Independent Non-executive Directors, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the
Board for its efficient and effective functioning.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring a high
standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing a balance in the
Board for bringing effective independent judgement on corporate actions and
operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the Company
and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging their duties to the
Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant operational matters
of the Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of the Company
are delegated to the management.

Corporate Governance Report
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Indemnity of the Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken against Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities. The insurance coverage would be
reviewed on an annual basis.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in order to
effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received induction on the first occasion of
his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and
obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. All Directors are encouraged to
attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the Relevant Period, the Company organised a training session for all
Directors. Such training session covered a wide range of relevant topics including
directors’ duties and responsibilities, corporate governance and update on GEM
Listing Rules amendments, etc. In addition, relevant reading materials including
memorandum on the duties and responsibilities of the Directors have been
provided to the Directors for their reference and studying.

The record of continuous professional development relating to director’s duties
and regulatory and business development that have been received by the Directors
during the Relevant Period are summarized as follows:

Directors
==

Executive Directorsgis&%

Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon (JP) Bire2stre LipmATa+
Dato’ Danny Goh Meng Keong ==z

Dr. Chua Ping Yong k&t

Independent Non-Executive Directors %ziEsti7E%

Prof. Emeritus Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Mohamed Salleh Bin Mohamed Yasin
LERyE METE = Mohamed Salleh Bin Mohamed Yasin{&it

Tan Sri Dato” Hj Abd Karim Bin Shaikh Munisar /g2 H; Abd Karim Bin Shaikh Munisar
Prof. Dr. Rozainun Binti Abdul Aziz #3%Rozainun Binti Abdul Azizf#+
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with their
authority and duties. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee are posted on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon request.

The list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is set out under
“Corporate Information” on page 4.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Prof. Dr. Rozainun Binti Abdul Aziz, Prof. Emeritus Tan Sri Dato” Dr.
Mohamed Salleh Bin Mohamed Yasin and Tan Sri Dato” Hj Abd Karim Bin
Shaikh Munisar. Prof. Dr. Rozainun Binti Abdul Aziz is the chairlady of the Audit
Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting terms
than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the Audit Committee are
to assist the Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting process,
risk management and internal control systems, effectiveness of the internal audit
function, scope of audit and appointment of external auditors, and arrangements to
enable employees of the Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters of the Company.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Audit Committee
shall hold at least two meetings a year.

During the Relevant Period, a total of 5 meetings of the Audit Committee, and the
attendance records are as follows:

Corporate Governance Report
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Name of Members Attendance
EENS HEE
Prof. Dr. Rozainun Binti Abdul Aziz (Chairlady) #i8Rozainun Binti Abdul AzizfE+ ( £ ) 5/5
Prof. Emeritus Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Mohamed Salleh Bin Mohamed Yasin &224ig /87825 Mohamed Salleh Bin Mohamed Yasint&=+ 5/5
Tan Sri Dato” Hj Abd Karim Bin Shaikh Munisar /g2 H; Abd Karim Bin Shaikh Munisar 5/5

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of five members, namely Prof. Emeritus
Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Mohamed Salleh Bin Mohamed Yasin, Independent Non-executive
Director, Tan Sri Dato” Sri Goh Ming Choon, Executive Director, Dr. Chua Ping Yong,
Executive Director, Tan Sri Dato’ Hj Abd Karim Bin Shaikh Munisar, Independent
Non-executive Director and Prof. Dr. Rozainun Binti Abdul Aziz, Independent Non-
executive Director. Prof. Emeritus Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Mohamed Salleh Bin Mohamed
Yasin is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary functions of the
Remuneration Committee include reviewing and making recommendations on the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior management,
the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior management;
and establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate
in deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet not less than once every year.

During the Relevant Period, a total of 2 meetings of the Remuneration Committee,
and the attendance records are as follows:

www.kingsley.edu.my @é
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Name of Members Attendance
BRES R
Prof. Emeritus Tan Sri Dato’ Dr.Mohamed Salleh Bin Mohamed Yasin (Chairman) & #5872 5 Mohamed Salleh Bin Mohamed Yasinféit ( /%) 2/2
Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon (JP) mfree e mmATa+ 1/2
Dr. Chua Ping Yong zok&EfE+ 2/2
Tan Sri Dato’ Hj Abd Karim Bin Shaikh Munisar f#7&%Hj Abd Karim Bin Shaikh Munisar 2/2
Prof. Dr. Rozainun Binti Abdul Aziz #iZRozainun Binti Abdul Azizi&=+ 2/2

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band are set out in note
33 in the Notes to the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of five members, namely Tan Sri Dato” Hj Abd
Karim Bin Shaikh Munisar, Independent Non-executive Director, Tan Sri Dato’ Sri
Goh Ming Choon, Executive Director, Dr. Chua Ping Yong, Executive Director, Prof.
Emeritus Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Mohamed Salleh Bin Mohamed Yasin, Independent
Non-executive Director, and Prof. Dr. Rozainun Binti Abdul Aziz, Independent Non-
executive Director. Tan Sri Dato’ Hj Abd Karim Bin Shaikh Munisar is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less exacting terms
than those set out in the CG Code.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating relevant procedures for the nomination
and appointment of Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors, and assessing the independence
of Independent Non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take into
account various aspects as well as factors concerning Board diversity as set out in
the Company’s Board diversity policy and Procedures for Shareholders to Propose
a Person for Election as a Director of the Company, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and industry and regional experience etc. The Nomination
Committee would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for
adoption.
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In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the Nomination
Committee would consider the candidate’'s character, qualifications, experience,
independence and other relevant criteria necessary to complement the corporate
strategy and achieve Board diversity, where appropriate, before making
recommendation to the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once every year.

During the Relevant Period, a total of 2 meetings of the Nomination Committee,
and the attendance records are as follows:

Corporate Governance Report
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Tan Sri Dato’ Hj Abd Karim Bin Shaikh Munisar (Chairman) S#7==#Hj Abd Karim Bin Shaikh Munisar ( %/ ) 2/2
Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon (JP) Stresstre epm AT+ 1/2
Dr. Chua Ping Yong zik&tg+ 2/2
Prof. Emeritus Tan Sri Dato” Dr. Mohamed Salleh Bin Mohamed Yasin #2438/ 8= Mohamed Salleh Bin Mohamed Yasinf#it 2/2
Prof. Dr. Rozainun Binti Abdul Aziz #3%Rozainun Binti Abdul Azizf#+ 2/2

The Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives of the Board is maintained.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Audit Committee is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year, the Audit Committee had reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of
the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control and risk management system, which is designed to provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement of
management and financial information and records or against financial losses or
fraud.

The Group has an internal audit function from the Risk Management & Internal
Control (RMIC) department to carry out periodic independent reviews to ensure
sound control environment, appropriate segregation of duties, well defined policies
and procedures, close monitoring and reviewed. The RMIC Department reported to
the management and reviewed by the Board on an on-going basis.

The Group is committed to maintaining and upholding good corporate governance
practice and internal control system. The Group has engaged, Crowe Governance
Sdn Bhd to review the effectiveness of the Group's internal control system and the
results were summarised and reported to the audit committee and the Board.
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The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee has reviewed the risk
management and internal control system, including the financial, operational and
compliance controls, for the year ended 30 June 2019, the Board considered the
internal control system effective and adequate. No significant areas of concern
which might affect Shareholders were identified.

Whistle-blowing policy is in place to facilitate employees of the Company to raise,
in confidence, concerns about a crime, criminal offence, miscarriage of justice,
dangers to health, safety and of the environment and the cover up of any of these.

The Company has developed its Continuous Disclosure and Communication
Policy which provides a general guide to the Company’s Directors, officers,
senior management and relevant employees in handling confidential information,
monitoring information disclosure and responding to enquiries.

The Governance and Internal Control Policies have been implemented to ensure
that unauthorized access and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2019.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’
Report on pages 59 to 120.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors of the Company in
respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 30 June 2019
amounted to RM263,000 and nil respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company,
Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited, in respect of audit services and non-audit services for
the year ended 30 June 2019 is set out below:

Service Category
BRFS%AERI

Audit Services &g
Non-audit Services kiR

Total st
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COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Relevant Period, the Company has engaged Tricor Services Limited,
external service provider and Lee Mei Yi of Tricor Services Limited has been
appointed as the Company’s company secretary. Its primary contact person at the
Company is Chee Sock Kion, the secretary of the Company.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary on
corporate governance and board practices and matters.

Lee Mei Yi, the Company Secretary, has complied with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing
Rule by taking no less than 15 hours of the relevant professional training for the
year ended 30 June 2019.

SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolution should be
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including the
election of individual Director. All resolutions put forward at general meetings will
be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general
meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting and Putting Forward Proposals at
General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of the Company, extraordinary general
meetings shall be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the secretary for the purpose
of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

Any requisition to convene an extraordinary general meeting or proposal to be
put forward at the general meeting can be addressed to the principal place of
business in Hong Kong of the Company at Unit 2413A, 24/F, Lippo Centre Tower
One, 89 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong marked with the attention of the
Company Secretary. The requisitionists must state in their request(s) the objects
of the extraordinary general meeting to be convened, and such request must
be signed by all the requisitionists. Upon receipt, the Company will verify the
requisitionists’ particulars and if the request is in order, the Company will convene
the extraordinary general meeting in accordance with the Articles.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal with
verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Corporate Governance Report
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Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the
following:

Address:

Kingsley Edugroup Limited

Unit 2413A, 24/F, Lippo Centre Tower One, 89 Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly
signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be] to
the above address and provide their full name, contact details and identification
in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

To ensure effective communication between the Board and the Shareholders, the
Company has adopted a Shareholders’ communication policy (the “Policy”) on 19
April 2018. Under the Policy, the Company’s information shall be communicated
to the Shareholders mainly through the Company’s financial reports (interim and
annual reports), annual general meetings and other general meetings that may
be convened, as well as by making available all the disclosures submitted to the
Stock Exchange and its corporate communications on the Company’s website for
corporate communications and other corporate publications.

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’s share registrar. Shareholders and the investment community may
at any time make a request for the Company’s information to the extent such
information is publicly available. Any such questions, requests, comments and
suggestions can be addressed to the Company by post to its head office and
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Relevant Period, there have been no significant changes to the
constitutional documents of the Company. An up to date version of the Company’s
Articles of Association is available on the Company’s website and the website of the
GEM of the Stock Exchange.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy on 1st January 2019. As a summary, in
recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall maintain adequate cash
reserves for meeting its working capital requirements and future growth as well
as its shareholder value. There is no pre-determined dividend payout ratio, and the
Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends to the shareholders of
the Company, which would take into account the following factors:

e financial results;

e cash flow situation;

e business conditions and strategies;

e future operations and earnings;

e capital requirements and expenditure plans;

e interests of shareholders;

e any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

e any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

www.kingsley.edu.my @@
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The board of directors ("Directors”] of Kingsley Edugroup Limited present their
report together with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

GROUP REORGANISATION AND HONG KONG PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
on 12 January 2017 with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. The Company completed the corporate reorganisation on 30 August
2017 in preparation for the Listing, pursuant to which the Company became the
holding company of the companies now comprising our Group. Details of the
Reorganisation are set out in paragraph headed “Reorganisation” in the section
headed “History Development and Corporate Reorganisation” in the prospectus of
the Company dated 30 April 2018. The Shares of the Company (“the shares”) were
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange on 16 May 2018 by way of Global Offering.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Detailed business review of the Group during the year, including an analysis of the
Group’s financial performance, an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business and Group's key relationship with its stakeholders who have a
significant impact on the Group and on which the Group’s success depends, is set
out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this report. These discussions form part of this report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Given the nature of its business, Kingsley has put in place rigorous risk
management procedures to ensure it achieves its strategic objectives and drive
performance. The Group’s financial position, results of operations and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties directly and
indirectly pertaining to the Group’s business. The following are the key risks and
uncertainties identified by the Group.

Risk mpg How Kingsley Manage Risks 2@ EmmE

Inability to expand the
business in the Asian region
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We established various procedures on feasibility studies and project collaboration as guidance to
study risk appetite, review project viability and ensure sustainability prior embarking to business

AT ERA L expansion. We have been reqgularly seeking for reputable partner for any possible collaboration and
partnership project. f5asz 7 a{F IR RIER BIENSIERS, (FARRRAE. BEEETTIERERIFHLE
B, LEBEEFEREY. HICESKREERFNAERME, UBREORERSIFEREE.

Reliance of

a single source of income
{RIREE— RN\ TR

We have reviewed the strategic business plan with focus on the growth of other entities. We have
been regularly seeking for reputable partner for any possible collaboration and partnership project.
The Group shall review the business plan on annual basis to re-act with immediate action whenever

necessary. fIES T HIRERE, SHEIEGRERNER. AN —EESHEERTNGIERE, UERTOHEREFER

S . FEBRSFESERHE, LEEUENIRRITE
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The Group’s financial risk management objectives and policies are set put in Note 5
to the consolidated financial statements.

The above is not an exhaustive list. Investor are advised to make their own
judgement or consult their own investment advisors before making any investment
in the Shares.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The board of Directors has overall responsibility for the Group’s environmental,
social and governance ("ESG”) strategy and reporting. The Board is responsible
for the Group’s ESG risk management and internal control systems to ensure
that the ESG strategies and reporting requirements are met. In particular, the
Group implemented energy-saving measures and environment friendly initiatives
in the workplace. This includes putting up signage, replacing electrical devices
with energy-efficient devices such as replacing LED light tubes, inverter-based
air-conditioners and electrical equipment. Employees and students were also
encouraged to switch off electrical items that were not in use. The Group also
encouraged employees and students to reduce paper consumption through the
use of double-sided printing, recycle and reuse printed paper and encouraged the
use of software-based systems to minimise printing. All printing machines used
were monitored to ensure sustainable use. The Group is committed to improving
environmental sustainability and will closely monitor the performance. There were
no non-compliance cases noted in relation to environmental laws and regulations
for FY2019. For details, please refer to section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance (ESG)” of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group has adopted risk management and internal control policies to monitor
the on-going compliance with the relevant laws and regulations. To the best of
the Directors’” knowledge, information and belief, having made all reasonable
enquiries, our Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and operation of our
Group during the FY2019.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group maintains a good relationship with its employees, and certain policies
have been implemented to ensure that its employees are provided with competitive
remuneration, good welfare benefits and continuous professional training. The
Group also maintains good relationships with its customers and suppliers, without
whom success in the Group’s production and operation would be at risk.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2019 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page
63 of this report.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Directors does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year
ended 30 June 2019.

FOUR-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the most recent
four years is set out in the section headed “Financial Summary” on page 3 of this
report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are set out
in Note 15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movement in share capital of the Company are set out in Note 28 to
the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movement of the Group’s reserves during the year ended 30 June 2019
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 66 of this
annual report.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year end and up to the date of this annual report were as
follows:

Executive Directors

Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon (JP] (Chairman)
Dato” Danny Goh Meng Keong

Dr. Chua Ping Yong

Independent non-executive Directors

Prof. Emeritus Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Mohammed Salleh Bin Mohamed Yasin (appointed
on 19 April 2018)

Tan Sri Dato’ Hj Abd Karim Bin Shaikh Munisar (appointed on 19 April 2018)

Prof. Dr. Rozainun Binti Abdul Aziz (appointed on 19 April 2018)

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
The biographical details of the Directors are disclosed in the section headed “Board
of Directors’ Profile” on pages 32 to 35 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contracts or an appointment letter
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date up to the annual general meeting 2019 and continue thereafter until
terminated in accordance with the terms of the agreement.

Other than as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company, which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other that statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the contracts relation to the reorganisation of our Group in relation to
the Listing and save as disclosed in this report, no transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to our Group's business to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Director or an entity
connected to the Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at any time during the year ended 30 June 2019.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
No equity-linked agreement were entered into by our Group, or existed during the
year ended 30 June 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2019, the interest and short positions of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the Shares, Underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or any of the associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFOJ which, once the Shares are listed on the GEM on the Stock Exchange, will
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interest or short positions which they
are taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO) or will be required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or will be required, pursuant to the Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to securities transactions by the directors, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, will be as follows:

LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES #E&igaoFE

Capacity/Nature of interest
B/ iEastts

Name of Directors
BEUS

Tan Sri Barry Goh (JP)
PR RIBEA T person®®

StlEERER N S — AT RS ESY

Dato’ Danny Goh
B RBRE person®

G R BRSNS — A TR Y

Interests of controlled corporation®
Sl EE R

Dato’ Law Boon Hee
BENE

L3

Notes:
(1) Allinterest stated are long positions.
[2)  The calculation is based on the total number of 800,000,000 Shares in issue as at 30 June 2019.

(3] On 14 September 2017, Tan Sri Barry Goh and Dato” Danny Goh entered into the Confirmation Deed to

acknowledge and confirm, among other things, that they have been and will be actively cooperating,
communicating, and acting in concert with each other with respect to their interest in or the business
of the relevant members of our Group since they became shareholders of Kingsley International and
will continue to act in concert after the signing of the Confirmation Deed. For further details, please
refer to the section headed “History, Development and Reorganisation - Confirmation Deed” in the
prospectus.
The aggregate of 552,000,000 Shares interested by them in aggregate consist of (i] 496,000,000 Shares
beneficially owned by Star Shine Finance Limited (“Star Shine”], which in turn in beneficially wholly-
owned by Tan Sri Barry Goh; and [ii] 56,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by DGMK Investment
Limited ["'DGMK”), which in turn is beneficially wholly-owned by Dato’ Danny Goh. Each of Tan Sri
Barry Goh and Dato” Danny Goh is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held or deemed to be
held by them by virtue of the disclosure requirements of the SFO.

(4] The entire issued share capital of Eduking Investment is owned by Dato’ Law. Therefore, Dato’ Law is
deemed to be interested in 48,000,000 Shares held by Eduking Investment by virtue of the disclosure
requirements of the SFO.

Interests of controlled corporation and interest held jointly with other

Interests of controlled corporation and interest held jointly with other
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wHRRE
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BRANTRESZZFTGEM iz ) /BIRIZS S R ERDISE
XVEREE 7R 853 BPAE AN B KA AT A s Mk E
( BIERIEES RIS RO ERIE RS ST
VAEGNEORESSNE ) , MREESRBER
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BRmEE" BigESte
552,000,000 69%
552,000,000 69%
48,000,000 6%
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LONG POSITION IN THE ORDINARY SHARES OF ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS rHEEEEE ERATFE

Name of associated Capacity/
Nature of interest

Sin/ fExiteE

Name of Directors
RS

corporations
HHEEEE

Tan Sri Barry Goh (JP) Star Shine

FHTE RAFE AT

Beneficial owner =255 A

Dato’ Danny Goh =z DGMK Investment Beneficial owner gEasEa A

Dato’ Law Boon Hee s52iws Eduking Investment Beneficial owner @EasEa A

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2019, none of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which he is taken or deemed
to have under such provision of the SFO) or which would be required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
would be required pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2019, so far as is known to the Directors, the following persons (not
being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had interest or short position
in Shares or underlying Shares which fell to be disclosed to the Company and the
Stock Exchange under the provision of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO:

Capacity/
Name of Shareholders Nature of interest
BERYEE / BB B/ 1t
Star Shine Beneficial owner EasiEE A

Puan Sri Toh Siew Choo i&HrE &5 Interest of spouse! Ee(@iEzsm

DGMK Investment Beneficial owner gEsEa A
Datin See Choon Keok £iT#%% Interest of spouse!? mefgiEse

Eduking Investment Beneficial owner gEaxsiEE A

Number of Percentage of

ordinary shares shareholding

HiERsa SigEstE

1 share of US$1.00 100%
1BRE{E1.00E AR B

1 share of US$1.00 100%
1BREE1.002E5TARID

1 share of US$1.00 100%

1BRE{E1.005E Toh A

[ ESTREEEIN, 1R20195F6H30H, AATEIEE
ERERTBASRAR TS ETOEEEE (%
REERABEERAIEXVED) 1Y . HERMHE
R P EIREE S LSRG BXVEBE TR 8 H
B ANEI R FTIERTRE ( BIERIRIEE
ERHAEIEOIBRBIE IR A S (EEE IR T
B ) SiRIEES RAIERAISE352(8/BE e IEFT
BRIV SCMN AR RS, SARIBGEM ERRIZE
5.46Z5. 6 TIE/BIIE AN B RIS FTHIRE R SR E o

FEE R HE ARG IS RARRARR R RO R

122019976 8308, BESEAH, TIAL (WIER
NEERSRSTHAS ) HHRHO SRR YD ik
BIERIEES RIIERGIZEXVARSE 2R 3D BRRIERL
AARNEI RS FRERERIRE, ECERIR
IBES NS IRAISE I3 EEEANTFENER
P

Number of Percentage of

shares held shareholding

SHEkRiv#E SIRESLL
552,000,000 69%
552,000,000 69%
552,000,000 69%
552,000,000 69%

48,000,000 6%
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Note:

(1) Puan Sri Toh Siew Choo is the spouse of Tan Sri Barry Goh and is deemed to be interested in the
shareholding interests of Tan Sri Barry Goh by virtue of the disclosure requirement of the SFO.

(2) Datin See Choon Keok is the spouse of Dato’ Danny Goh and is deemed to be interested in the
shareholding interests of Dato’ Danny Goh by virtue of the disclosure requirement of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, at no time during the year ended 30 June
2019 and up to the date of this report, have the Directors and the chief executive of
the Company and their respective close associates (as defined in the GEM listing
rules) had any interests in, or had been granted, or exercised any rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
and/or its associated corporations (within the meaning of SFO).

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed securities
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries from the Listing Date to 30 June 2019.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provide that Directors shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or
sustained in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which
judgement is given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted. The Company has
maintained liability insurance to provide appropriate cover for the Directors during
the year ended 30 June 2019.

INTEREST OF COMPLIANCE ADVISER

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
appointed China Everbright Capital Limited ("CECL") to be the compliance adviser.
CECL, being the sponsor to the listing, has declared its independence pursuant
to Rule 6A.07 of the GEM Listing Rules. Save as the above, neither CECL nor any
of its associates and none of the directors or employees of CECL who have been
involved in providing advice to the Company as the sponsor, has or may, as a result
of the share offer, have any interest in any securities of the Company or any other
companies of the Group. The compliance adviser agreement entered between the
Company and our compliance adviser dated 8 September 2017.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
Detail of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals of
our Group are set out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements in this
report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee will review and determine the remuneration and
compensation packages of the Directors’ regarding their responsibilities, workload,
time devoted to our Group and the performance of our Group. Up to the date of this
annual report, no share option scheme has been adopted.

COMPETING INTEREST

The Directors confirm that none of the Controlling Shareholders or the Directors
and their respective close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules] is
interested in any business apart from the business operated by our Group which
competes or is like to compete, directly or indirectly, with our Group's business
during the year ended 30 June 2019 and up to the date of this annual report.

DEED OF NON COMPETITION
On 19 April 2018, the Company entered into the Deed of Non-competition with each
of the controlling shareholders (“Controlling Shareholders”) of the Company.

Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, each of the Controlling Shareholders
have undertaken, jointly and severally, to the Company that they would not, and
would procure their respective close associates and/or companies controlled by
the respective Controlling Shareholders not to, directly or indirectly, either on their
own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or company,
among other things, carry on, participate or be interested or engaged in or acquire
or hold (in each case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise) any
business or activity which is or may be in competition with the business of the
Group. Details of Non-competition are disclosed in the section headed “Relationship
with our Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

The Company has received an annual declaration in writing from each of the
Controlling Shareholders confirming that he/it had complied with the non-
competition undertakings provided to the Company under the Deed of Non-
competition. The INEDs have reviewed the status of compliance and enforcement
of the Deed of Non-competition and confirmed that all the undertakings thereunder
have been complied with since the date of the execution of the same and up to 30
June 2019.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the year ended 30 June
2019 are set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
None of these related party transactions constituted a connected transactions as
defined under the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 30 June 2019.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 30 June 2019, our five largest customer of the Group accounted
for approximately 2.87% (2018: Nil) of our revenue and our largest customer
accounted for approximately 1.05% (2018: Nil) of our revenue. Our five largest
supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 17.18% (2018: 22.02%]) of our
cost of revenue and our largest supplier accounted for approximately 7.82% (2018:
12.64%) of our cost of revenue.

None of the Directors, their respective close associates, or any shareholder of the
Company who, to the knowledge of our Directors, owns more than 5% of our issued
capital, has any interest in any of our five largest customers and suppliers.

EVENTS AFTER THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
Save as the above, the Board is not aware of any significant event subsequent to 30
June 2019 and up to the date of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would be oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company complies with
the minimum of public float of 25%.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

During the year ended 30 June 2019, BDO Limited resigned as auditors of the
Company and Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited was appointed by the board of directors
of the Company to fill up the casual vacancy so arising.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019
have been audited by ZhongHui Anda CPA Limited, which would retire at the
forming AGM and being eligible, offers itself for re-appointment. A resolution to re-
appoint ZhongHui Anda CPA Limited as the Independent Auditor and to authorise
the Directors to fix its remuneration will be proposed to the Shareholders for
approval at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon (JP)
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 August 2019
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OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingsley Edugroup
Limited (the “Company”] and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
set out on pages 64 to 120, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2019, and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"] issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

REVENUE RECOGNITION
Refer to Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue is a key performance indicator of the Group which increases the risk that
revenue could be manipulated to meet financial expectations or targets. In addition,
there is inherent risk on the occurrence and completeness of the Group’s revenue
because the academic year is not the same as the Group’s financial year. Tuition
fees for students are invoiced at the beginning of each academic term/year before
the Group’s education services take place. With revenue deferred until the services
take place, there is potential for error on revenue recognition that revenue may be
recorded in the incorrect period of the financial year.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of Kingsley Edugroup Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with Limited Liability]
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Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls over the admission of students, collection of tuition fees and
timing of revenue recognition;

- Evaluating the reasonableness on the revenue recognised during the year by
analysing the tuition fees charged to and the number of students enrolled on
each school class levels;

- On asample basis, inspecting payment records regarding tuition fees from the
students; and

- Reconciling the total number of students at the end of the year to the records
submitted to Malaysian education authorities.

We consider that the revenue and profit recognised are supported by the available
evidence.

Construction in progress and land and buildings
Refer to Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group tested the amount of construction in progress and land and buildings for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to our audit because the balance of
construction in progress and land and buildings of approximately RM147,645,000
as at 30 June 2019 is material to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the Group’s impairment test involves application of judgement and is based on
assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:
- Assessing the identification of the related cash generating units;

- Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the value-in-use calculations;
- Comparing the actual cash flows with the cash flow projections;

- Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions (including revenue
growth, profit margins, terminal growth rates and discount rates); and

- Checking input data to supporting evidence.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for construction in progress and land
and buildings is supported by the available evidence.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of Kingsley Edugroup Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with Limited Liability)
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information in the Company’s annual report, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other
information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s
report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes
available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of Kingsley Edugroup Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with Limited Liability]
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA's website at:
http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/standards/auditing-
assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wan Ho Yuen

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P04309

Hong Kong, 21 August 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For The Year Ended 30 June 2019 &8 NEMEEWAE EiE2019F6830H1EFE

2019 & 2018 &
Notes RM’000 RM’000
PiEE FoF FoF
REVENUE w25 6 30,998 30,007
Cost of revenue g4 (16,907) (14,493)
Gross profit £ 14,091 15,514
Other revenue and gains b\ Rz 8 6,384 6,284
Selling and distribution expenses &R 4445 (781) (350)
Administrative expenses {753 (14,240) (16,805)
Operating profit & 5,454 4,643
Finance costs at&siA 9 (3,385) (3,355)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX peiniissl 2,069 1,288
Income tax credit/(expense) Frgisike./ (B%) 1 82 (108)
PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR &misfIiR2EmRN B 12 2,151 1,180
ATTRIBUTABLE TO A FALRES:
Owners of the Company & ElEE A 2,252 1,510
Non-controlling interests 3zgetEss (101) (330)
2,151 1,180

Earnings per share siz# 14
- Basic and diluted (RM sen) - A (52(l) 0.28 Ut
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As At 30 June 2019 &2& 8K E 52201986 830H

2019 & 2018 &
Notes RM’000 RM’000
PisE Fo&F FoF
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 3kzansE
Property, plant and equipment #% . EiRERRE 15 154,229 136,298
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment #%. BERRETEFZIE - 120
Total non-current assets JEpEnEESE 154,229 136,418
CURRENT ASSETS iz#higE
Accounts receivable fEBE=r 17 781 39
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables safgzua. &eRkEfbREKEIE 18 3,120 1,769
Amounts due from related companies falEaN A S20E 19 9,105 3,640
Tax recoverable aiEiRE 154 167
Pledged bank deposits Bifimi57721 20 550 533
Cash and cash equivalents &R ES%EY) 6,267 35,211
Total current assets FayEE@E 19,977 41,359
CURRENT LIABILITIES @&
Accounts payable fEfteER 21 1,615 664
Other payables and accruals St Eam fEstz 22 6,213 5,683
Contract liabilities awaE 23 1,722 601
Amount due to a related company ffdRgE A SIEE 24 - 1
Bank borrowings sg51&zx 25 7,122 23,169
Obligations under finance leases gi&faERIE 26 27 -
Total current liabilities ZEnaEwsa 16,699 30,118
NET CURRENT ASSETS iz@hisE®E 3,278 11,241
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES wisErizsaE 157,507 147,659
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES iiz@&E
Amount due to a related company FEf IR EEE 24 22,013 14,792
Bank borrowings sg5f&zx 25 58,966 64,339
Deferred tax liabilities jEiErEaE 27 - 10
Obligations under finance leases gr&tEEEE 26 262 -
Total non-current liabilities 3kxene @ 81,241 79,141

NET ASSETS iziszE 76,266 68,518
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position As At 30 June 2019
SeEERIRE R2019F6830H

2019 2018
Notes RM’000 RM’000
MisE Fox FoH

EQUITY g8
Share capital gz 28 4,039 4,039
Share premium #iz(E 31,410 31,410
Reserves % 29 40,738 33,160
Equity attributable to owners of the Company &\ Si#EE A ez 76,187 68,609
Non-controlling interests 3EzpefEs 79 (91)
TOTAL EQUITY sgasumss 76,266 68,518

The consolidated financial statements on pages 64 to 120 were approved and FOLE1N0BNGEMFREEI2019F8F21HE
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 August 2019 and are signed on BETENERTIE, WHRITRSEE:
its behalf by:

Approved by: #igA

Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon (JP) Dr. Chua Ping Yong
PR EiERPEATEHT KB
Director 2= Director 2=
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

For The Year Ended 30 June 2019 &S5 #EmEE#E B2 2019F6H30HEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FATBEENEN
Non-
Share Merger Other Retained controlling
Share capital premium reserve reserve earnings Sub-total interests  Total equity
iz BRiE At st REER gt 32 50 4]

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM000 RM’000 RM'000

FoE Fo5 Fox FoE Fo5 Fox FoE Fo5
At1July 2017 201747818 1 - 18,300 - 13,351 31,652 239 31,891
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year a2 Ek 2 - - - - 1,510 1,510 (330 1,180
Issue of ordinary share for share offer (Note 28)

ARHBERTLER (Wit28) 1,009 39,382 - - - 40,391 - 40,391
Transaction costs attributable to issue of new shares /s REETERA - (4,943) - - - (4,943) - (4,943)
Capitalisation issue (Note 28] &z (R 3,029 (3,029) - - - - - -
Issuance of new shares (Note 28) &84 (Mizi28) 1 - - - - 1 - 1
Shares repurchased and cancelled (Note 28] ssEIRs8t (Hiztos) 1 - - - - (1) - (1
Effect of Reorganisation &gz - - (1) - - (1) - (1
At 30 June 2018 and 1 July 2018 201856 H30RR20185781R 4,039 31,410 18,299 - 14,861 68,609 (91) 68,518
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year &R 2E«\ B8 - - - - 2,252 2,252 (101) 2,151
Issuance of new shares to non-controlling shareholder

HTHROTEERRR - - - - 29 29 2N 300
Fair value gain on an interest free loan (Note 24) g s&zAREs% (i) - - - 5,297 - 5,297 - 5,297

At 30 June 2019 R201986B308 4,039 31,410 18,299 5,297 17,142 76,187 7 76,266
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For The Year Ended 30 June 2019 28R E&REX 8lE2019F6H30HIEEE

2019 & 2018 ¢
RM’000 RM’000
For Fou
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES @&izsrreBens
Profit before income tax iFr/ginamaH) 2,069 1,288
Adjustments for: siLAFSIEE L.
Interest income FISMA (27) (31)
Liquidated and ascertained damages 2ipig=xzEEs (5,475) (5,475)
Finance costs gt&pia 3,340 3,310
Amortisation of debt issuance cost fE&as/T A B 45 45
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #2 . EEREHITE 3,113 2,318
Listing expenses tiRIsz - 7,399
Written off of accounts receivable jifsrEigsn - 20
Operating cash flows before working capital changes EigaegamsinESEHS e 3,065 8,874
Change in accounts receivable falzaEsEs) (742) 812
Change in prepayments, deposits and other receivables a8, #aR RIS (1,351) (996)
Change in amount due from a shareholder fEipzszIES S - 2
Change in accounts payable fefagzrss 951 82
Change in other payables and accruals EftbfEfiEam st 2 e 530 (466)
Change in contract liabilities ax&EEs) 1,121 -
Cash generated from operations @&FiEHe 3,574 8,308
Income taxes paid B{JprisF: (222) (321)
Income taxes refunded E@priEi 307 123
Net cash flows generated from operating activities E&;zaiFfEE S 858 3,659 8,110
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES & ZsfrsRens
Purchases of property, plant and equipment s&Ey%. BEREHE (19,351) (1,403)
Increase in prepayments for property, plant and equipment #%. BiER:EE FaFEIERLN - (120)
Considerations paid upon Reorganisation SIS E - (1
Increase in pledged bank deposits Eifi#sR/57E2xEmM (17) (15)
Interest received EiFIE 27 31

Net cash flows used in investing activities {g&EsFRBRS R EEAE (19,341) (1,508)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows For The Year Ended 30 June 2019
CEBREREER BHE2019F 68300 IEEE

2019 & 2018
RM’000 RM’000
Fo&F FoF
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES mt&:zarreEens
Proceeds from issuance of new shares #{758s () Frissna - 1
Proceeds from issuance of new shares to non-controlling shareholder #{75Rg () =R ERFIEENIE 300 -
Proceeds from bank borrowings ig/5s2rsrissia - 27,000
Repayment of bank borrowings {&igsiF5x (21,465) (9,120)
Advance from/(Repayments to) related companies gl S)zher/ ((EERIEHAT LR ) 12,527 (20,099)
Repayment of obligations under finance leases (&gst&mRERE (11) (120)
Interest paid 2 (4,613) (4,118)
Payment of listing expenses 4 Frfis - (7,089)
Issue of shares on global offering, net of share issue expenses £EkESEREHTA, TIFRIRMHEHTRISE - 35,449
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from financing activities ztiZ:&s) ( i ) / FASESRESE (13,262) 21,904
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B&RBSZEY (/) / ehnssE (28,944) 28,506
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year &R&RIRSEEY 35,211 6,705
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year £xBERESZEY 6,267 35,211

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B2 RS SEYERIHT
Cash and bank balances B&miRiF4ss 6,267 35,211
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For The Year Ended 30 June 2019 &8 7REMzT 22 2019F6830H LFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12 January 2017 as
an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands. Its shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited on 16 May 2018. The address of the Company’s registered office
is P.0. Box 31119 Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1205 Cayman Islands and its principal place of business is
LG5, Kingsley International School, Persiaran Kingsley, Kingsley Hills, Putra
Heights, 47650 Subang Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in provision of education and related
services.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Star Shine Finance Limited, which was
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

The individual financial statements of each group entity are presented
in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“functional currency”). The principal activities of the Group are
expressed in Malaysian Ringgit ("/RM”) which is the functional currency of the
principle operating entity of the Group. Accordingly, the Group uses RM as its
presentation currency.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs”] issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA”") that are relevant to
its operations and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 July 2018.
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS"); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards ("HKAS"); and Interpretations. The adoption of
these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to the
Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and amounts reported for the current year and prior years except as
stated below.
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2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (CONTINUED)
A. HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

Revenue is recognised over time when services is provided and received by
the customers.

HKFRS 15 has been applied retrospectively and resulted in changes in the
consolidated amounts reported in the financial statements as follows:

Decrease in other payables and accruals S uamk st &M
Increase in contract liabilities gxg&EiEm

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective. The application of these new HKFRSs will not have
material impact on the financial statements of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The Stock Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and estimates. It also
requires the directors to exercise its judgments in the process of applying the
accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgments and areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to these consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 30 June. Subsidiaries are
entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities,
i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting rights as
well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to determine whether
it has control. A potential voting right is considered only if the holder has
the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of subsidiaries that results in a loss
of control represents the difference between [(i] the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that subsidiaries and (i) the Company’s share of the net assets of that
subsidiaries plus any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiaries and
any related accumulated exchange reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
and consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between the non-controlling
shareholders and owners of the Company.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
shareholders even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions
(i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.

Merger accounting for business combination under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the combining entities as if they had been combined from the date when
they first came under the control of the controlling party.

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and consolidated statements of cash flows include the results and
cash flows of the combining entities from the earliest date presented or
since the date when the combining entities first came under the common
control, where this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the
common control combination.

The consolidated statements of financial position have been prepared to
present the assets and liabilities of the combining entities as if the Group
structure as at 30 June 2019 had been in existence at the end of each
reporting period. The net assets of the combining entities are combined
using the existing book values from the controlling party’s perspective. No
amount is recognised in respect of goodwill or gain on bargain purchase at
the time of common control combination, to the extent of the continuation
of the controlling party’s interest.

There was no adjustment made to the net assets nor the net profit or loss
of any combining entities in order to achieve consistency of the Group's
accounting policies.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(c) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at rates
sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over the estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual rate are as
follows:

Freehold land N/A
Buildings 50 years
Motor vehicles 5years
Leasehold improvement 5years
Computer 5years
Furniture, fixture and equipment 5years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction and
plant and machinery pending installation, and is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are
available for use.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(d) Leases

The

Group as lessee

(ii)

The

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as operating leases.
Lease payments (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as finance leases. At
the commencement of the lease term, a finance lease is capitalised at
the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of
the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the
lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement
of financial position as finance lease payable. Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period
during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the
lease term and their estimated useful lives.

Group as lessor

(ii)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as operating
leases. Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the lessees all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as finance leases.
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised
as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(e) Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

(f)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement
of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis
where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the timeframe established by the
market concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case of investments at fair
value through profit or loss. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified as financial assets at
amortised cost.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are classified
under this category if they satisfy both of the following conditions:

- the assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assets in order to collect contractual cash; and

- the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less loss allowance for expected credit losses.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g)

(h)

(i)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on
financial assets at amortised cost. Expected credit losses are the weighted
average of credit losses with the respective risks of a default occurring as
the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the expected
credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of that financial instrument (“lifetime expected credit losses”) for trade
receivables, or if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade receivables) has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that
financial instrument at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected
credit losses that represents the expected credit losses that result from
default events on that financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss
allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required amount is
recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments which
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are
set out below.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(j)

(k)

(U

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

(m) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract
with a customer with reference to the customary business practices and
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised product or service exceeds one year, the consideration is
adjusted for the effect of a significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring control over a product or service to a customer. Depending
on the terms of a contract and the laws that apply to that contract, a
performance obligation can be satisfied over time or at a point in time. A
performance obligation is satisfied over time if:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance;

- the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

- the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative
use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is recognised
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the product or service.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Other revenue
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than
termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before
twelve months after the end of the annual reporting period in which
the employees render the related service. Short term employee
benefits are recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

(ii) Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are recognised
as an expense in profit or loss when the services are rendered by the
employees.

The employees in the Group’s subsidiaries in Malaysia are members
of the state-managed retirement benefit scheme, the Employees
Provident Fund (the "EPF Scheme”) operated by the Malaysia
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of payroll costs to the EPF Scheme. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make
specified contributions.

(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the purpose
of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are
outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(q) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 3. EEEREER (@)
(q) Taxation (Continued) q) #RIE (&)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally ERRERRTRNG RIS RIEBRIEE E
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities SENHHIRIE S T, Wi KRR
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority HEEI SN B R B A BEHR TR
and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a HEGEHARIBEERSER, BIE
net basis. IERIEEEN & E BRI,
(r] Related parties (r)  BES
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group. Bl S IR AL EBRIENM A LTI EEE,
(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the la)  figfEl B A TR EIA RS & T I%
Group if that person: %, BIRAREBRIRIETS
(i) has control or Joint control over the Group; ) HAEEEEHEREEES
1#;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or li] HAEEBEAZES; =

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of the Company or (i) BARBHLARFBRBNIE
of a parent of the Company. EEEAS,

(b] An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any of the (b) fEERGE IR, BRA
following conditions applies: £B (FREEE) 1REES:

(i} The entity and the Company are members of the same group il ZEERAREBERE—EE
(which means that each parent, subsidiaries and fellow (BIBRE). WEBASRER
subsidiaries is related to the others). WBASSEEREE) .

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or lil ZERAS—BRIHENT
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the sSiEERE (5 —ERME
other entity is a member). EEREATNHENTNE

SR¥) .
(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. liil MEEEYRE—$=5M1E
Bz,

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is v ZEBRB=7EBNGED

an associate of the third entity. ¥, MBR—BRRzE=1E
BERUEENE],

(v] The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of v EERDRALENEEES
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group. If BeRViR BN TR I AIRIETR
the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also FEHE . HAEEARS B8
related to the Group. FTEl, BUEMIREEIREAE

EER.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified il B (alfmA N tizslsktt
in (a). A=

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity Wil - (alprR ATHZERBEX
or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or FENmER (ZEE
of a parent of the entity). BAT) NEBEERAS,

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides (viii) % BRSPS M AR
key management personnel services to the Company or to a S VNSICIR /NSIEIZN/NSILS /N
parent of the Company. SRUEEEEASRE.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(s)

(t)

(u)

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions about resources allocation to
the Group’s business components and for their review of the performance
of those components.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except receivables to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of any
impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or
cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.
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4. KEY ESTIMATES
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a]

(b)

[c]

(d]

le]

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises the revenue over the academic term which is
considered as the best estimation of revenue recognition. A change in
the estimation will result in an adjustment to the revenue and contract
liabilities.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group regularly reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant
and equipment based on factors such as business plan and strategies,
expected level of usage and future technological developments. Future
results of operations could be materially affected by changes in these
estimates brought about by changes in the factors mentioned above. A
reduction in the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
would increase the recorded depreciation and decrease the value of
property, plant and equipment.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists,
the Group makes an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset.
This requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
the cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. A change in the
estimated future cash flows and/or the discount rate applied will result in
an adjustment to the estimated impairment provision previously made.

Impairment of loans and receivables

The policy for the impairment of receivables of the Group is based on
the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis of accounts and on
the management’'s judgement. A considerable amount of judgement
is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each debtor.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions. Significant
estimates are required in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk,
liquidity risk and interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’'s financial performance.

(a) Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its accounts and other
receivables and bank deposits. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of accounts and other receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Ongoing credit evaluation
is performed on the financial condition of trade customers. Accounts
receivable are due on presentation of invoices. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. The default risk of the industry and
country in which customers operate also has an influence on credit
risk but to a lesser extent. At 30 June 2019, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 11% (2018: 16%) of the total accounts
receivable was due from the Group’s largest customer. At 30 June 2019,
41% (2018: 66%) of the total accounts receivable was due from the Group’s
five largest customers.

Substantial bank deposits are held in major financial institutions which
management believes are of high credit quality.

The Group considers whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of financial assets on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period by comparing the risk of a default occurring as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
It considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following information is used:

- internal credit rating;

- actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant change
to the borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

- significant changes in the value of the collateral or in the quality of
guarantees or credit enhancements; and

- significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of the
borrower, including changes in the payment status of borrowers.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is more than
30 days past due in making a contractual payment. A default on a financial
asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within
60 days of when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group. The Group normally categorises a loan or receivable for write off
when a debtor fails to make contractual payments greater than 360 days
past due. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the Group, if
practicable and economical, continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due.

The Group uses two categories for non-trade loan receivable which reflect
their credit risk and how the loan loss provision is determined for each
of the categories. In calculating the expected credit loss rates, the Group
considers historical loss rates for each category and adjusts for forward
looking data.

Category Definition

| Bs

Performing Low risk of default and strong capacity to pay
BX EBYRBRERIERES

Non-performing Significant increase in credit risk

B9 (EEmEpRREEIEN

The Group’s non-trade loan receivable is considered to have low risk and
under the “Performing” category because the debtor has a low risk of
default and has strong ability to meet his obligations.

At 30 June 2019 52019¢F6 H30H
Loans to &t
Provision for loss allowance gsigiss

Carrying amounts 8s@E(&E

At 30 June 2018 j22018¢F6 H30H
Loans to &t
Provision for loss allowance gsigiss

Carrying amounts s&mE(E

5.
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FEESEESIER BT RERIHE
BEBUR(FRZE

Loss provision
BSiERE

12 month expected losses
12{B B TEEARsE

Lifetime expected losses
EHITRHARESIR

FEENFBZ B ERTR AR
BRS [ JEAY | 4851, ThEREBARRE
WEBNERENEITESEE.

Related
company Total
B QS @t
RM’000 RM’000
Fo&F FoF
9,105 9,105
9,105 9,105
3,640 3,640
3,640 3,640
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 5. SRERERE (E)
(b) Liquidity risk (b) RENEEEME
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity AEERBAR B ERR R ZIRE RIBRARR
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to HESFE, WRESTHRSMHE, UL
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. EHEHR RN RS ESRE .
The maturity analysis of the Group's financial liabilities is as follows: AEEEMBENBEROTT:
Within More than More than Total
1year or 1years 2 years contractual
repayable butlessthan but less than More than undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5years 5years cash flow amounts
1EEPARE; 1€ML pi: 3V TR
EDRRRIERNIE {EDRE {BDRREE 3:300 RER8es FRm(E
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
FoE Fox Fo£ Fo£ Fo£ Fo£

At 30 June 2019 ps20194 65308

Accounts payable iR 1,615 - - - 1,615 1,615
Other payables and accruals St uaR R &R 6,213 - - - 6,213 6,213
Amount due to a related company fefsaEASEE - 520 12,118 14,672 27,310 22,013
Bank borrowings $§/7&21 11,000 9,933 34,806 26,681 82,420 66,088
Obligations under finance leases giaiExis 41 A 123 147 352 289
18,869 10,494 47,047 41,500 117,910 96,218

Within More than More than Total

1year or 1years 2 years contractual
repayable butlessthan but less than More than undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2years 5years 5 years cash flow amounts

14ELAREY (£:35 0 2AELLE HESES 3]
BNHR(RIERNIR {BORAE {BIORSE SELE REREEs RE(E
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Fe& Fe& Fe& FeE FeE FeE

At 30 June 2018 82018465308

Accounts payable feffiez: 664 - - - 664 664
Other payables and accruals St ZuaREt &R 5,683 - - - 5,683 5,683
Amount due to a related company iRl ASEE 1 - 14,792 - 14,793 14,793
Bank borrowings st 27,674 8,763 32,700 38,623 107,760 87,508

34,022 8,763 47,492 38,623 128,900 108,648
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5.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

(c)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rate. The Group’s interest rate risk mainly arises from bank balances,
bank borrowings and obligations under finance leases. Borrowings
arranged at variable rates and fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.

All of the Group’s bank borrowings as at 30 June 2019 and 2018, bore
interest at floating rates whereas its obligations under finance leases bore
interest at fixed rates. Details of bank borrowings and obligations under
finance leases are disclosed in Notes 25 and 26, respectively.

The Group’s bank balances, including pledged bank deposits also expose
it to cash flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank balances. The directors of the Company
consider the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk in respect of bank
balances is not significant due to low level of deposit interest rate.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management closely monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

At 30 June 2019, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100
basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would
decrease/increase the Group's profit for the year and retained earnings
by approximately RM599,000 (2018: RM576,000]. The changes in interest
rates do not affect the Group’s other component of equity.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of each reporting
period and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for the
borrowings in existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the next annual reporting
date.

5.

SRHEREE (§)

(c)

RGN
xRS R EMTENARERRESR
SRMBANFEUMKBINER . NEE
IR =R R ERRERITER. IRITEN
NEEHERE. mFEFEREER R
LZHRER D RIS A EEERREERERN
KRN ATEFERERR .

120195 K% 201856 330H, KEBFRE
IRITEFISRIZBREAS, MAEHEE
FIERIZEIEFIETE . IRITERE
FREFIERIFFED BURSHIAE25 % 26 1755

FEETRIR T (LESRRTE
M) FRTHBNEREMERERER
KRR, ARTFAERE, ATEF
BN EE IR TR RIEAIRZR R R
TEKX,

REE B EENREPEER . R
m, EEETRRMNXER, E6FE
KEEEEIPEAREER.

R2019F6 B30, f@F=ZiE LA/
TE100EED, MATEEMESRIFT
B, MEAEENENGZHRRERR
#iED / 1EIN49599,0008F (20184 :
576,0009% ) . REEHIZTHELRE
B EMAERERS -

ERBRES TR R EB SRS
HARERAE, WLAE BAIEFAIR)RE R
EFE. FARI00EERSEREHEE
TMEFERS BRI R G IR 52
EEAIATE
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 5. SRERERE (E)
(d) Categories of financial instruments (d) =EITEER
2019 & 2018 &
RM’000 RM’000
Fo= Fo=

Financial assets: g£gtig%E:

Financial assets at amortised cost i A2BEN RIS E

- Accounts receivable - pEiges=r 781 39
- Deposits and other receivables -igz& R E thAEKEIE 233 187
- Amounts due from related companies - fElEIE A SIS 9,105 3,640
- Pledged bank deposits - BifiiR{FER 550 533
- Cash and cash equivalents -E&RIES%EY 6,267 35,211
Total 42 16,936 39,610

Financial liabilities: £ai&E:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost szt AZIEEN SRS R

- Accounts payable - fEtagER 1,615 664
- Other payables and accruals - bz EtEm 6,213 5,683
- Amount due to a related company - fEffBIs A SIS 22,013 14,793
- Bank borrowings - $g{3{&2x 66,088 87,508
Total 422 95,929 108,648

6. REVENUE 6. Wik
2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
FosH Fo5
Tuition fees 2 18,642 21,201
Ancillary services fEfR#® 10,309 8,806
Others Eith 2,047 -

Revenue from contracts with customers s\ 30,998 30,007
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6. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 6. Uik (48)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers: DIFEREHIMN:
International Tertiary 2019
Segments 538 school education Others Total
20194
B0 253 aSENE Eift e H
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Fe5 FoH Fos Fes
Geographical markets &5
Malaysia Ezicftgs 28,824 127 2,047 30,998
Major service =g
Tuition fees 2 18,553 89 - 18,642
Ancillary services &R 10,271 38 - 10,309
Others =t - - 2,047 2,047
Total gzt 28,824 127 2,047 30,998
Timing of revenue recognition Wasre2RIrsRS
At a point in time R—{gEBsRIE; 3,189 - - 3,189
Over time pR—(ERSRIR 25,635 127 2,047 27,809
Total gzt 28,824 127 2,047 30,998
International Tertiary 2018
Segments 58 school education Others Total
20184
BB wBENE Eift @
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Fe5 Fos Fos Fes
Geographical markets ttErs5is
Malaysia Esicptgs 29,865 142 - 30,007
Major service =gz
Tuition fees =g 21,117 84 - 21,201
Ancillary services fiEfps 8,748 58 - 8,806
Total gzt 29,865 142 - 30,007
Timing of revenue recognition Wasre2RIrsRS
At a point in time R—{EBsra2; 2,489 1 = 2,490
Over time p—{ERsRIER 27,376 141 = 27,517

Total 4zt 29,865 142 = 30,007
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REVENUE (CONTINUED)

Tuition fees and ancillary services

The principal activities of the Group are provision of education and related
services, international school, college for higher education and skills training
programme. Tuition fees received from colleges are recognised after a service
contract is signed, the price is fixed or determinable, and services are provided.
Tuition fees received from international school are generally paid in advance
prior to the beginning of each academic term, and are initially recorded as
deferred revenue. Tuition fees are recognised proportionately over the relevant
period of the academic terms. The portion of tuition payments received from
students but not earned is recorded as deferred revenue and is reflected as a
current liabilities as such amounts represent revenue that the Group expects
to earn within one year. Other ancillary fees, including (i) the goods and
services provided at the on-campus canteens; (ii) other miscellaneous sales
of goods and services provided for students; and (iii) other training related
services, are recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have passed
or the services have been rendered.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

(a) Reportable segment
The Group’s operating segments are determined based on information
reported to the chief operating decision maker of the Group (the directors
of the Company who are also directors of all operating subsidiaries)
(the “CODM"], for the purpose of resource allocation and performance
assessment and focus on type of services performed. The CODM considers
the business from the service perspective. When the Group companies
have similar economic characteristics and the segments are similar in
each of the following respects: (i) the nature of the services; [ii) the type or
class of students for their services; and (iii] the methods used to provide
their services, the Group's operating segments are aggregated. In the
view of CODM, the Group is principally engaged in two different segments
which are subject to different business risks and different economic
characteristics and the Group's operating and reportable segments for
segment reporting purpose are International school and Tertiary education
respectively.

Wi (48)

BHENRERE
REFNEREBRRHBENEERE. E
B2, SEUELRRNEREIIRE. A&
BERFTRIBEX. BREHERIEENRE
HRFRERCWEREE . BRSREE—
RRIZRIS SRR, ENERBIEL
Was, REHREREIRIRILAIER . BREE
WEMEF B EREU IR D EBNRRIE
s, WIIRBREEE, ZEEARER
FREAR — RN s . Eb3EE (B1E()
RNRERMNERERE; (IR2ERMN
EfieE i EaRs; Rl Bz ) i)
R EmNERITE R IR R

SERER

(a) FIZIRHDE
REFREESEROAEREELE
REEE GREIFTEEENBA \ﬂ§$5ﬁ$
NEEF) ([ FBREREKE| )R
HERED, LUED @Eaﬁ&aﬂﬁ%ﬁ,
WEER PR HIRFSAVAREY . E2EE)
REWNRBBEESER . EAKEBIE
TABRVEEATEAEM, MomE: (R
TEROMEE; (iPRARFSEAERIARELSARRY;
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. SHEBEH (&)
(a) Reportable segment (Continued) la) EIREHHER ()
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities: B 2P e Bat - BERBRENE
International Tertiary Inter-segment

school education Others elimination Total
Bl SEHE Hftt SEBRIEE @zt
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Fox Fox Fox Fox Fox

Year ended 30 June 2019 & 1201956 B30 R 1L :

Revenue from external customers sEspapz= BRI 28,824 127 2,047 - 30,998
Segment profit/(loss) £&sAl/ (5:8) 6,069 (799) (3,201) - 2,069
Interest revenue Fisus 25 - 2 - 27
Finance costs gigmx 3,379 - 6 - 3,385
Depreciation #r& 3,031 39 43 - 3,113
Income tax expense/(credit) FrEimeEs / (%) (73) (10) 1 - (82)
Additions to segment non-current assets FEHEEREEE 20,650 [ 388 - 21,044

As at 30 June 2019 1201946 F308
Segment assets papaE 175,667 800 27,829 (30,090) 174,206

Segment liabilities $#p&(E 120,621 2,692 4,002 (29,375) 97,940
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 7. EREH (F)
(a) Reportable segment (Continued) la) EIREHHE ()
International Tertiary Inter-segment
school education Others elimination Total
B2 S4B Hith SYERRTELEH @t
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Fo& Fo& Fé& Fo& FéE

Year ended 30 June 2018 ;1201856 B30 R 1L

Revenue from external customers seEspepz Bl 29,865 142 - - 30,007
Segment profit/(loss) 471,/ (Fi8) 11,896 (1,921) (8,687) = 1,288
Interest revenue Fisus 31 - - - 31
Finance costs gigmA 3,355 - - - 3,355
Depreciation #%& 2,276 41 1 - 2,318
Income tax expense/(credit) Friess,/ (%) 105 (3) 6 - 108
Additions to segment non-current assets FESEEREEE 18,696 99 13 - 18,808

As at 30 June 2018 420186300
Segment assets HixEE 175,238 1,002 27,162 (25,625) 177,777

Segment liabilities 5 #aE 132,001 2,105 1,115 (25,962) 109,259
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7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(a) Reportable segment (Continued)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, assets and

(b) Geographical information

aEpE (E)
a) TEI=IFHRDE (&)

T 5 s - 125 - HER B Y

liabilities: 3
2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
Fo&s Fos
Revenue i
Total revenue of reportable segments sJ2#R4s> #prosaKEs 30,998 30,007
Consolidated revenue a1l 30,998 30,007
Profit or loss g%
Total profit or loss of reportable segment ar2:Rs Erigzs44E 5,270 9,975
Other profit or loss &g (3,201) (1,288)
Unallocated amounts: 54 #ics4s:

Listing expenses F5Rsss - (7,399)
Consolidated profit before tax for the year Fpinaisa g 2,069 1,288
Assets 5&

Total assets of reportable segments ar=2®5 & ERE 176,467 176,240
Other assets g5 27,829 27,162
Elimination of intersegment assets ikt airEE (30,090) (25,625)
Consolidated total assets &aaEaE 174,206 177,777
Liabilities &f&

Total liabilities of reportable segments aTREA & EEE (123,313) (134,1006)
Other liabilities =h&E (4,002) (1,115)
Elimination of intersegment liabilities o & E 29,375 25,962
Consolidated total liabilities & &z (97,940) (109,259)

(b) IEER

For the geographical information, revenue from external customers are WEERSHE, RKEIMEFRIKEERE
based on the location of operations. Since the Group solely operates SRR . HRAEBIER BRI
business in Malaysia and all of the non-current assets of the Group are REETs, MASEREIERBEESN
located in Malaysia, no geographical segment information is presented in PREBZRAEER, HAERIRE B iRE%E
accordance with HKFRS 8 Operating Segments. B8R E DA 29 M= D EIER

(c) Information about major customers 0 EBEFEH
No revenue from a single customer contributes 10% or more of total FR, WES—ERIOWEGAEEBIL
revenue of the Group during the year. Z510%aELA F
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8. OTHER REVENUE AND GAINS

Interest income FEA

Liquidated and ascertained damages (Note) s=spis=maemEs ()
Forfeited student deposits Bzl 4izs

Others =t

Note:

The Group is entitled to the liquidated and ascertained damages as a result of the delay in completion
of the construction of the annex building under a contractual contract with Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd.,
a related company controlled by Dato” Goh Meng Keong, one of the Controlling Shareholders, under
normal commercial terms. Judgement has been made by the directors of the Company to recognise
the liquidated and ascertained damages received from Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd. as other revenue as,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd. entered into the construction
contract with the Group was not in its capacity as a shareholder.

9. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank borrowings iR/F&zFE
Amortised debt issuance cost BiEEmRZA
Revolving loan interest fEeszFa
Interest on finance leases gigiEEFIE

Less: interest capitalised on qualifying assets j5: a@gaEmEA LTS

8.

LM\ Bz i
2019 & 2018
RM’000 RM’000
For Fox
27 31
5,475 5,475
363 216
519 562
6,384 6,284

Bi¥=E -

1RIFEEKingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd. (#5RIREZ=ECHIRE
FEHIGIRTE N E] ) FIEE B
BN AN A HE R LTI HI-—AE ZHIERE
AKingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd.ilt
VEREH, WANTEFE
REAHTUERKingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd. ATREIEZLIE

-

BT, AIRALEIES:
LR T 1 BN B

AR AN .

2019 &
RM’000

Fom
4,091

45
516

4,658
(1,273)

3,385

HIER], AEE

2018 &
RM’000

Foi
4,133

45
380

4,560
(1,205)

3355
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL 10. FH. EROTHAERASRSHMNALTHE

EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments a) EERSSTHASHE
Directors” emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383 of the Hong EES IREE B A SIS (5622

Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) (the Ordinance) and the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors] Regulation
(Cap.622G) (the Regulation) is as follows:

=) $3831% (150)) RAE) (KEES
FEER) 3RA (586226 ) (#7A)) &

FEAT:
The emoluments of each director and the chief executive, on a named SEENESTEAS0ME (ZEgE
basis, are set out below: #) HHT -

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE20195F6H30HLLFE
Contributions
Salaries to retirement

and other benefit
Fees benefits schemes Total
e HEREMER BHRERETBIGR £
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
FoF Fo&F Fo&F FoF
Executive directors: #/7&=.
Tan Sri Dato” Sri Goh Ming Choon (JP) Breesie ATt 20 - - 20
Dato’ Goh Meng Keong s&==8ai 20 - - 20
Dr. Chua Ping Yong zik&ts+ 20 225 28 273
Independent non-executive directors: BxiETES:
Prof. Emeritus Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Mohamed Salleh
Bin Mohamed Yasin &zygizmirmets
Mohamed Salleh Bin Mohamed Yasinf&it 60 - - 60
Tan Sri Dato’ Hj Abd Karim Bin Shaikh Munisar
FHEREESEEH] Abd Karim Bin Shaikh Munisar 60 - - 60
Prof. Dr. Rozainun Binti Abdul Aziz ##2Rozainun Binti Abdul Aziz{E+ 60 - - 60
240 225 28 493

For the year ended 30 June 2018
#HE20185F6H30RLLFE
Contributions
Salaries to retirement

and other benefit
Fees benefits schemes Total
ok FEREMER BHRERETEIGR i@
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
FoE Foi Fox FoE

Executive directors: #/7&=

Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon (JP) Bir@esirmegms ATt 3 = = 3
Dato'Goh Meng Keong =g 3 - - 3
Dr. Chua Ping Yong k&gt 3 219 27 249

Independent non-executive directors: Jgi73Es17%E:
Prof. Emeritus Tan Sri Dato’ Dr. Mohamed Salleh
Bin Mohamed Yasin &eygizmirmets
Mohamed Salleh Bin Mohamed Yasint&+ 7 - - 7
Tan Sri Dato’ Hj Abd Karim Bin Shaikh Munisar
FHERFESELH] Abd Karim Bin Shaikh Munisar
Prof. Dr. Rozainun Binti Abdul Aziz #iZRozainun Binti Abdul Azizf#+ 7 - - 7

~
I
I
~

30 219 27 276
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10. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL 10. B%. RRTBRAERAEZRSHMA LS
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) (%8)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) AEEEHEHAL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, one HEZ20195F6 H30HILFE, AKEDLE
(2018: one) of them were directors of the Company whose emoluments are EEFMALR, —& (20186 —&)
included in the disclosures in note above for the year ended 30 June 2019. RARTES, HMEER LMK
The emoluments of the remaining individuals are as follows: B B NATIOMIET:
2019 & 2018 &
RM’000 RM’000
Fo5 Fo5
Salaries and other benefits g2 m 2itigH) 904 691
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes iB{kigflstEttR 7 70
975 761
Their emoluments were within the following bands: RERIME N FLLTEE:
No. of individuals
Ag
2019 & 2018
Nil to HK$1,000,000 21,000,005 4 .
The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior management were ENHEMSREEASHE N FLUTE
within the following bands: =l
No. of individuals
A8
2019 & 2018 &
Nil to HK$1,000,000 221,000 000:85% 3 3
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of FN, AEEREOQAASESHAERSH
the Company or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join A LS HEAEE, (EAWRSIENINEIIN
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of ANAEBFREB R REE . Fr, 5
the directors nor the five highest paid individuals have waived or agreed to hE RN TIENER R ST
waive any emoluments during the year. £,
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11.

INCOME TAX

Charge for the year &g
(Over)/Under provision in respect of prior years & (B#&8E ) /BHEFE

Deferred tax jEEiia

Income tax (credit)/expense FrEis (%) /B9

Malaysian profits tax is calculated at the statutory tax rate of 24% (2018: 24%)
of the estimated taxable profit for the year ended 30 June 2019.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group had
no taxable profits arising in Hong Kong for the year. Taxation for overseas
subsidiaries is similarly charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation
ruling in the relevant jurisdictions.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
income tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before tax pfesizs

Tax calculated at the domestic tax rate szEpZFEERIE

Tax effect of income not taxable and expenses not deductible B/E:2RK N R FRAHDFBI AR SR/

Tax losses and unutilised capital allowance not recognised during the year
FRRERIIRERB R ARE R E R RIREE

(Over)/Under provision in respect of prior years &4 (#@8E ) /BERE

Deferred tax recognised in respect of investment tax allowance #ig&is iR sarEREERIE

Others &t

Income tax (credit)/expense Frsis (%) /B9

FRiSIR

2019 & 2018
RM’000 RM’000
For For
7 85

(79) 21
(72) 106
(10) 2
(82) 108

EZE2019F6H308LEFE, BRAmFSHR
(HETFERRRERI24% (20184 : 24% ) HOEE

R,

HRER, AEELEREEBATUERR
BF, EIAREETEREBRISREHREO
B, BINTBADNRIERKRIEENERE
R ERFEBRENR.

FRRFTSHREI D B RSB R H it £ I
NERIRPTSIRnER AR -

2019 2018 &
RM’000 RM’000
FoH FoH
2,069 1,288
498 425
805 2,344
596 340
(79) 21
(1,990) (2,977
88 (45)
(82) 108
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12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. fFREF
The Group’s profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) the following: AEENFNEHENENR/ (5N ) THE
18:
2019 & 2018 &
RM’000 RM’000
FoH Fo&F
Auditor's remuneration #Z#emEis 263 417
Depreciation i 3,113 2,318
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration): 8 Tri (f@iFE=HS )
Wages, salaries and bonus T&. #FHkR#Es 12,630 9,751
Short-term non-monetary benefits jgapiEeteas) 363 178
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes iB{figflstEtn 1,216 1,048
14,209 10,977
Written off of accounts receivable ssrEnaesrn - 20
Minimum lease payments received under operating leases from leasing
of properties less outgoings in the year fpiRiEEaiaEHiE SIS TR S F0RZE (29) (21)
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as expense in the year
FRERAEXNESEESREESHN 354 409

Listing expenses (including professional fees and other expenses) F#ifisy (EiEHLE AR R ) - 7,399
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13. DIVIDEND 13. R
No dividend has been paid or proposed by the Company during the year, nor AABRFN IR SR TARE,
has any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period. BIRSHIARLMEZ SRS .
14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. SBREF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the AREEHEREB NGO BREAREER
ordinary owners of the Company is based on the following data: FITHRIRLA T BURE S
2019 & 2018 &
RM’000 RM’000
For For
Earnings &7/
Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company #&5#EE A FE(EErviF 2,252 1,510
2019 &£ 2018 &
Number of shares gt # 6
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year &nEs75BRINET9% 800,000,000 625,205,479
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to BRERBIDRAADEE AEGEFIRIL
owners of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in RIBREFEERNEETEBRAOMEF IS
issue during the respective years. The weighted average number of ordinary B, FHtERNEBRIMETEHERN2017
shares used for such purpose has been retrospectively adjusted for the effects F8H30ATMAMNEARI2018F4B19HEST
of the issue of shares in connection with the Reorganisation completed on [9599,998,0002 810 E AU TR TARIDAY
30 August 2017 and the capitalisation issue of 599,998,000 shares which took FE(FLIBRE,
place on 19 April 2018.
Diluted earnings per share were the same as the basic earnings per share as R AEEREZE2019F%201856 8301 1E
the Group had no dilutive potential shares during the year ended 30 June 2019 FEWEEFHERD, NESREERTEE
and 2018. REAEFIER.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2019
RO BERENT HE2019F6830HIEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT#%. mRER:EE

Land Furniture,
Construction and Motor Leasehold fixtures and
in progress buildings vehicles improvements Computer equipment Total
IR TiRiER RE HENRERE Bl B RERRE &5t
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM'000
FeE FoE FeE e H L H L H FeE
COST: g
At 1 July 2018 sa0i87818 44,869 94,914 214 594 1,764 2,401 144,756
Additions g 4,779 10,342 356 916 N 4,560 21,044
At 30 June 2019 52019568308 49,648 105,256 570 1,510 1,855 6,961 165,800
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION: sfi7&:
At 1 July 2018 20187818 - 5,361 128 87 1,157 1,725 8,458
Provided during the year i - 1,898 79 242 226 668 3,113
At 30 June 2019 2019468308 - 7,259 207 329 1,383 2,393 11,57
CARRYING AMOUNT: sis:
At 30 June 2019 s201956E308 49,648 97,997 363 1,181 472 4,568 154,229
Land Furniture,
Construction and Motor Leasehold fixtures and
in progress buildings vehicles improvements Computer equipment Total
EEIE TitRiEF i HENERE Bl R RERRE &5t
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM'000
FoE Fox Fox Fox FoE FoE FoE
COST: gz
At 1 July 2017 woo17E7818 27,464 94,577 214 77 1,580 2,036 125,948
Additions & 17,405 337 - 517 184 365 18,808
At 30 June 2018 x201826F 308 44,869 94914 214 594 1,764 2,401 144,756
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION: sfi7z:
At 1 July 2017 0177818 - 3,468 85 i 926 1,584 6,140
Provided during the year i - 1,893 43 10 231 141 2,318
At 30 June 2018 2018268308 - 5361 128 87 1,157 1,725 8,458
CARRYING AMOUNT: &5 fa:
At 30 June 2018 2018568308 44,869 89,553 86 507 607 676 136,298
Construction in progress as at 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018 comprises 201956 H30H 5201856 H30AAIEE TIZE

buildings being constructed in Malaysia. B SRR EET
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2019
RO BERENT HE2019F6830HIEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 15. Y%, MRERRE (E)

As at 30 June 2019, the carrying amount of construction in progress without
legal title was approximately RM49,648,000 (2018: RM44,869,000). The Group
has entered into a 50 years lease with respect to the land of construction in
progress starting from the handover date of the building. The Group are also
entitled to the right of first refusal and option to purchase the land. On 19
April 2018, the Group has entered a sale and purchase agreement in relation
to the land of construction in progress with Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd., a related
company. The land will be transferred to the Group at a nominal consideration
of RM10 upon completion of the construction in progress, the initial lease
arrangement with respect to the land was then ceased to apply.

The Group has capitalised borrowing costs amounting to approximately
RM1,273,000 (2018: RM1,205,000) on qualifying assets, and the borrowing costs
were capitalised at the weighted average rate of its specific borrowings of 31%
(2018: 30%) for the year ended 30 June 2019.

Land included in property, plant and equipment with a net carrying amount
of RM10 (2018: RM10) as at 30 June 2019, is situated in Malaysia and is held
freehold.

As at 30 June 2019 and 2018, the Group had pledged its land and buildings to
secure for general banking facilities granted to the Group.

As at 30 June 2019, the carrying amount of motor vehicles held by the Group
under finance leases amounted to approximately RM320,000.

201956 H308, MEAERE R TZARE
B RI%549,648,0009F (20185 44,869,000
LE) . AEBECHEE TR IEEET5050
8, BEFTWEBERREN . AEBTEZ
HIEERE SRR BRI EEE . 12201854519
H, ANEEEERII/ SIKingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd.
MERTRENTETES R E. TEIER
T, tHBUSKHABEI0STEETAE
B, mERAENT S THIREEA.

AEBSHEEREENEERMAL,273,000
4% (20185 1,205,0004% ) EAK. BHE
201996 F30R LS, EEMANAFEREN
DIBEEIOR)ER31% (20184 30% ) B4

STANMIEE . BB R R A B AR P gl
B AZERE, R2019F6830H 2 FREAES
1043 (2018%F: 1098) &

2019201856 H30H, AEESIKRL
HRIEF, EVSAEEN—RIBTRE.

20196 H308, AEBEIREMERESHISEA
B RE{EL04320,00085
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2019
RO BERENT HE2019F6830HIEFE

16. SUBSIDIARIES 16. MIEAE
Particulars of the subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period are as follows: IREFEHAR, WBASFHEIT:

Percentage of

Place of equity interests

incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ attributable to
Company name registration registered share capital the Company  Principal activities
e MR/ Bieihes BETEER/ tREE FOTIEMGARIEILG  EEERE
Directly held: Eiz#%:
Kingsley Malaysia Limited BVl smayrie US$1 [equivalent to RM4) 100%  Investment holdings 12 &R

1257 (1HERGS S

Kingsley Hong Kong Limited BVl &mayrie US$1 [equivalent to RM4) 100%  Investment holdings 12 &R

15570 (HHERASE)

Indirectly held: pigiss:

Kingsley Edugroup Berhad Malaysia Bz RM2 &= 100%  Investment holdings 1zi&zpg

Kingsley International Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Bz RM17,500,000 &= 100% International school Epzeat:

Kingsley Graduate School Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Bz RM1,000,000 &= 70%  College for higher education
B EHESRR

Kingsley Skills Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Bz RM100,000 ¢z 100%  Provision of skills

training programme
SRR R
Kingsley Professional Centre Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Bz RM2 &= 100%  Provision of education
and related services
SR E R ERIRTS

Kingsley Language House Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia szxpizs RM500,000 <25 70%  Inactive ersmsess
Kingsley Catering Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Bz RM100 &= 70% Inactive Epsmassg
Kingsley Advisory And Strategic Initiatives Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Bz RM1,000,001 &= 70%  Business of organisation,

promotions and/or management
of event meeting incentive,
convention, exhibition (MICE),
business advisory and
consultancy services in public
relations and communications
B HEER  VEEEE. EE)
IFils. RESEES) (BR) , At
B BIE S E 2S5 M R

RIS ST
Kingsley Education (HK) Limited Hong Kong &% HK$10,000 100%  Inactive gramess
(equivalent to RM5,149)
10,000/87T (1HERRS1499% )
The Group had no subsidiary which has material non-controlling interest for EHZE2019FE K% 2018F 6330 IEFEEREEHT

the year ended 30 June 2019 and 2018. BB ASIEEE IR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2019
RO BERENT HE2019F6830HIEFE

17. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 17. FEURERSR
2019 & 2018 &
RM’000 RM’000
Fo=5 Fo5
Accounts receivable mEKBEER 781 39
Provision for loss allowance g - -
Carrying amount 8sfEf& 78l 7
The invoices issued by the Group to its customers are due on presentation and FEEOEFHAENZEREAN, WERES
no credit term is granted. HAPR
Included in accounts receivable are trade debtors (net of impairment losses) FEW RN BEEN R HERRLI T IREEID AT
with the following aging analysis, based on invoice dates, is as follows: fEWEIE ( EHIPRRIERTE )
2019 & 2018 &
RM’000 RM’000
Fo5 Fo5
Within 1 month 11EE® 326 b
1 to 2 months 1Z=2@8 346
2 to 3 months 2z=3(E8 68 17
Over 3 months #@3fEs “
781 39
At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews accounts receivable for REREWR, TEERERIRGEEERT
evidence of impairment on both an individual and collective basis. Based on FEWERRE DIREER . RIBRERE, 2019
the impairment assessment, no impairment loss has been recognised as at F6 B30 AMARIERRERIE . AEEILETLE
30 June 2019. The Group did not hold any collateral as security or other credit WERSRIS B IR SRR RS E SRR
enhancement over the accounts receivable. Bt
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2019
RO BERENT HE2019F6830HIEFE

17. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 17. FEMRBRRR (48)
Reconciliation of loss allowance for accounts receivable: FEM R SIS B EIAR -
2019 & 2018 &
RM’000 RM’000
For For
At the beginning of the year &7 - 32
Amounts written off Ssezns - (32)

At the end of the year sk - _

The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS 9 to provide for AEEEAEBYBREENFEIROBLE
expected credit losses using the lifetime expected loss provision for all TIEEREEBIEELEE, 2 iRl
accounts receivable. To measure the expected credit losses, accounts BRFIR AL ERTERN S ERsiaiE . At =2T8H
receivable have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and EEEE, BUERICEREBEERRSER
the days past due. The expected credit losses also incorporate forward looking BRI D, TREEEBIET R SRIEEE
information. #o
More than
3 months
but less
Less than 1to3 than 12
1 month months months
Current past due past due past due Total
D iaHA EHEiEsEAa
BNER 18R 1Z3(@E8 80521288 Eh
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
FoE Fox Fox Fox FoE

At 30 June 2019 322019865308
Weighted average expected loss rate pnigrissaspgsia= 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Receivable amount pelziassa - 326 414 41 781
Loss allowance giggs = - - R :

At 30 June 2018 2018568308
Weighted average expected loss rate pnigrigasimsias 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Receivable amount mEkzuEsE - 6 24 9 39
Loss allowance gsigfs - - - B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2019
RO BERENT HE2019F6830HIEFE

18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. FA(IRIA. EERHEMBIKRIE
2019 & 2018 &
RM’000 RM’000
FoH Fo&F
Prepayments &tz 2,887 1,582
Deposits iz 125 154
Other receivables Et K zE 108 33
3,120 1,769
19. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED COMPANIES 19. FEWEBARRIE
Maximum
amount Balance Balance
Name of directors outstanding as at as at
Note having beneficial interest during 30 June 30 June
Name & W GEREESNEEES the year 2019 2018
FHNER 122019¢F 1220185
FITRER 6B30H/YEER 6B30H/YEE
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Fox Fox FoE
Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd. (a) Dato’ Goh Meng Keong 2=z 9,105 9,105 3,630
BGMC Corporation Sdn. Bhd. (a)  Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon (JP)
PR E SRR 4T 9 - 9
One City Properties Sdn. Bhd. (a)  Tan SriDato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon (JP)
FHFESETR KPR ATt 1 - 1
Note: PfdaE:
[a]  Amounts are non-trade related, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. la)  FBEFESHE. BT, BERERERE

&,
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RO BERENT HE2019F6830HIEFE

CRIFRITER
201956 A30H, AEEMMRITEFROR

20. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 20.
As at 30 June 2019, the Group has pledged bank deposits of approximately

RM550,000 (2018: RM533,000) to secure a banking facility granted to the Group
(Note 25). The pledged deposits were matured on or before 19 July 2019 (2018:
19 July 2018).

550,0004% (20185 : 533,0009% ) (FAK
SEFFERIRITRIBAER (MHEE25) . BIR
HRZERRR2019E7 8198 (20184 2018478

198 ) stz RIZIEA.

21. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 21. FE(TERSR
2019 2018
RM’000 RM’000
Fos5 Fes
Accounts payable (iR 1,615 664

The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the date of receipt of goods, is as BERIEERMBHER, HESEAIENRE

follows: T

2019 & 2018 &

RM’000 RM’000

Fos Fo5

Within 1 month 11@8 K 1,330 106
1to 2 months 1z=2(E8 212 539
2 to 3 months 2z=3(EH - 13
Over 3 months #z@3@EAs 73 6
1,615 664

HZE2019F6H308 LFE, AEEERNES
EEHIRA0E308 (20184 0E30H)

The normal credit terms granted to the Group range from 0 to 30 days (2018: 0
to 30 days) for the year ended 30 June 2019.

22. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 22. HitFE{(IRIERETER

2019 & 2018 &

RM’000 RM’000

Fos5 Fe5

Accruals pEztem 1,147 1,064
Deposit refundable to students @ligigretErizse 4,082 3,519

Other payables =fbfEizns 984 1,100

6,213 5,683

TNEEEDRREMENRER BT ERZER
E{ERARERE.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amount of other
payables and accruals approximate their fair value.
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RO BERENT HE2019F6830HIEFE

23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 23. Afa(E

As at As at As at
30 June 2019 30 June 2018 1 July 2017
$220196E6H30H  52018E6H30H  142017¢E7HR1H

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
FoH FoH FOE

Disclosures of revenue-related items: £z EEI%E A #7% -

Contract liabilities axaE 1,722 601 1,128
Transaction prices allocated to performance obligations unsatisfied at end of DECEEREARTTHAEFIEFWTEIRR T
year and expected to be recognised as revenue in: FERRABEIIRZZES:

2019 &£ 2018 &

RM’000 RM’000

For Foi

- 2018/19 -2018/20194 5 - 601
- 2019/20 -2019/20206 5 1,722 -
1,722 601

2019 & 2018 &

RM’000 RM’000

Foi Foi

Year ended 30 June #z=6H30R1-5E
Revenue recognised in the year that was included in contract liabilities at the beginning of year

FFANEHSEWIFE RIS 601 1,128
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2019
RO BERENT HE2019F6830HIEFE

23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 23. &aMafE(4E)
Significant changes in contract liabilities during the year: FREHIREHEAL
2019 2018
2019¢F 20185
RM’000 RM’000
Foi Foi
Increase due to operations in the year E&EpEEmEN 1,722 601
Transfer of contract liabilities to revenue auam@EzKzs 601 1,128
A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer products or BHaEEFERREFEEIEECEER
services to a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an WEMAE (SN REDSER ) HERSREH
amount of consideration is due] from the customer. =N
24. AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY 24, FEIFABARRIE
The amount due to a related company of approximately RMNil (2018: RM1,000) FEN BRI A EIIBATSE (20184F: 1,000
is trade related, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. A director OF)  EBSME. B, RENRERE
and shareholder, Tan Sri Dato” Sri Goh Ming Choon, has control over the KiGEE., EERREMTESBHNERBE
related company. HEI B EIEHIRE.
During the year, a director and shareholder of the Company, Tan Sri Dato’ FRN, AREEEFRRRATESEHMERA
Sri Goh Ming Choon granted a 5 years loan facility to the Group at no interest BEORAEEREREERSPAFNERRME,
for the purpose of repaying debts. The Group recognised a fair value gain of BIFBEER . AEEHREEHERARE
approximately RM5,297,000 on the interest-free loan as an equity transaction. W#5495,297,0009 5, LIESZSZNER. It
After that, the amount was assigned to a related company which is controlled &, ZeREEE—EHEE R ESIR
by Dato” Goh Meng Keong. NI
The amounts of approximately RM10,787,000 (2018: RM14,792,000) and #910,787,000<%F (20184 : 14,792,000
RM11,226,000 (2018: RMNil] are represented unpaid construction expenses of &) K&11,226,00097F (20185 BLHE) M
the buildings being constructed in Malaysia and interest-free loan respectively. FIRS BB BRI FRIAR T ERE R
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within five (2018: RBEER. ZEIARERR. REMAR
three) years. A director and shareholder, Dato’ Goh Meng Keong, has control f(2018%F: =) FREE. —BFEERK
over the related company. R, TERPE, HEHASERE.
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RO BERENT HE2019F6830HIEFE

25. BANK BORROWINGS 25. RITER
2019 & 2018 &
RM’000 RM’000
Fo=5 Fo5
Current gpga
Secured EiEH
Term loan | due for repayment with one year —F&rzIEpEEnI R 5,167 3,584
Bank loan Il due for repayment on demand &k EiEr9sRT eI 2,000 19,630
Less: unamortised debt issuance cost i sty s @A (45) (45)
Total current ppgasess 7,122 23,169
Non-current 3Egpsg
Secured EiEH
Term loan | EHg&ER 59,248 64,665
Less: unamortised debt issuance cost i sigss> s ERA (282) (326)
Total non-current JkEpgAEE 58,966 64,339
Total w3t 66,088 87,508
Notes: PigE:
il Term loan | is repayable in 108 monthly instalments, commencing in December 2017. W ’gffﬁﬁfmgzg77&72’5@55’/7\%{5@’ #108
(i) Term loan I is interest-bearing at the bank’s monthly cost of fund rate plus 2.00% per annum i) ;’E,;ﬁﬁﬁ/&fﬁff@ﬁéﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬂfﬁﬁizz00%
on monthly rests. The average interest rates of the Group’s bank borrowings as at 30 June 2019 FHEE, 2019F6/F30H, AEERIENR/ T
granted under banking facilities is 5.33% (2018: 6.06%] per annum. BT IR TR A LI FF435.33% (2018
liii]  Bank loan Il is repayable in 24 months from the date of first disbursement and contains ‘ﬁsif'gé%) ° o
bl d del (i) IRITEFNINEE EAE T AtS241E5 EiE,
. repayable on eman c ause.. ’ A TR B
(iv]  Bank loan Il is interest-bearing at the bank’s cost of fund rate plus 1.00% per annum for the liv]  RITEIFGIRI TE T AR FINERZ1.00%2 5
period equal to the applicable tenure. 8, FTEHIREIEHHIEF .
At 30 June 2019 and 2018, the bank borrowings was due for repayment as [R20195 K% 201856 530H , FIHBEIEAVIRIT
follows: EEZlIN
On demand or within one year {z&ska—py 7,167 23,214
In the second year =4 6,584 5,167
In the third to fifth years, inclusive 8=5Z=%1F (G@iFEERE) 27,754 24,336
After five years A% 24,910 35,162
66,415 87,879

The amount only includes the actual drawdown from the credit facility. SHMEOEC BEEMERBRIITE.
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IREMTEIRRMEE #Z=2019F6B30HLEFE

25. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
At 30 June 2019, the Group had banking facilities of in aggregate, RM75,500,000
(2018: RM97,500,000]. Balance of approximately RM66,415,000 (2018:
RM87,879,000) were outstanding as at 30 June 2019.

At 30 June 2019, the Group’s banking facilities were secured by the following:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Facility agreement of RM70,000,000:
- open charge on a piece of land PT36307 belonging to Kingsley Hills
Sdn. Bhd., a related company with a common director;

- guarantee by Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon and Dato” Goh Meng
Keong, directors of the Company;

- corporate guarantee by B&G Capital Resources Bhd.,
company with a common director for RM70,000,000; and

a related

- debenture incorporating fixed and floating charge over all the Kingsley
International’s assets and undertakings, both present and future.

Facility agreement of RM500,000:
- upfront fixed deposit.

Facility agreement of RM5,000,000:
- acash deposit of RM1,500,000

At 30 June 2018, the Group’s banking facilities were secured by the following:

(a)

Facility agreement of RM70,000,000:
- open charge on a piece of land PT36307 belonging to Kingsley Hills
Sdn. Bhd., a related company with a common director;

- guarantee by Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon and Dato” Goh Meng
Keong, directors of the Company;

- corporate guarantee by B&G Capital Resources Bhd.,
company with a common director for RM70,000,000; and

a related

- debenture incorporating fixed and floating charge over all the Kingsley
International’s assets and undertakings, both present and future.

25,

tRIFEK ()

201956 830H, AEEEGRTMESHE
75,500,0004% ( 2018%F: 97,500,0007%) .
20195F6330H, #5%84966,415,00043 (2018
F: 87,879,0009F ) KEIE.

201956 H30H, AEEIRITRIELITSIIER
HEHR:

(a)  70,000,0004 EHIRLEIRE:

- BHEZEZMEEAEKingsley
Hills Sdn. Bhd.A9—1@t1BPT36307
YER RIS,

- ARIDEFRHHEEZERPERE
BRIFREIELRYER;

- BHEZESMREHATIBRG Capital
Resources Bhd.{E{170,000,0009%
HREHER; &

- B&Kingsley International {lY£ZE
ENRAENEER ZHFCHNRES
ERSRIR(EIES .

(b) 500,000 FRIFLE R
- fafEEEEE.

(c) 5,000,0005HRIRNE RS
- IR2%£1,500,0005%F

201856 H30H, AEEIRITRIELITSIIER
HEHR:

(a) 70,000,0004EHIRLERE:

- BHEEZMBEEAEKingsley
Hills Sdn. Bhd.A9—1@t1BPT36307
YER RIS,

- ARIDEFRHHEEZERPERE
BRIFREIELRYER;

- BHEZESHREHATIBRG Capital
Resources Bhd.{E170,000,00095
HREHER; &

- B&Kingsley International {9£ZE
ENRAENEER ZHFCNRES
ERSRIR(EMES .
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25. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 25. SR{TMERK (&)
(b) Facility agreement of RM500,000: (b)  500,000< HRIBHE A5 -
- upfront fixed deposit. - TEEEERE.
(c) Facility agreement of RM27,000,000: (c) 27,000,000 HERIRHE R
- personal guarantee by Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon, a director of - ARFEEAHESERIPEE
the Company. AR
- The bank shall replace the personal guarantee of Tan Sri Dato’ Sri - REAEEGCEBHERBAERA
Goh Ming Choon and replace by corporate guarantee of the Company BRI LM, IRITEBRSIHE
upon successful listing of the Group on the stock exchange of Hong SBERPENEALR, LZUX
Kong Limited. As at 30 June 2018, the bank is in the progress of REMREER . 12201856530
replacement of personal guarantee by corporate guarantee of the B, SROTEELURABHREER
Company. HEEAER.
26. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 26. BEHERIE

Present value of minimum

Minimum lease payments lease payments
RBHEEEIR RBHESIRMORE
2019 2018 & 2019 & 2018 &
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
FoH Fox Fox FoH
Within one year —&pxy 41 - 27 -
In the second to fifth years, inclusive RE— =515 (QEEERE) 164 - 126 -
After five years A& 147 - 136 -
352 -
Less: Future finance charges j&: sskan&pisz (63) B
Present value of lease obligations fE&ixiERE 289 - 289 -
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months
(shown under current liabilities)
W 12{E B WEIESZSHIRIE (DA REERE )
(27 =
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 12{@8 B &3 (FH920E 262 -
It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its motor vehicles under finance REENBEURMESESHEGBETRE. ¥
leases. The average lease term is 8.5 years. At 30 June 2019, the average TAEAA8.55 . 1R2019E68308, FIISEELE
effective borrowing rate was 2.55%. Interest rates are fixed at the contract FHZEH2.55% . FIRDREOHBEE, &
dates and thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. All leases are SAE@MARE A SERNEEN ., FIEBaE
on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been entered into for BB E Ty, W EAFE S EIELT T
contingent rental payments. At the end of each lease term, the Group has the o, REBEHERE, AEEEGHIRS
option to purchase the plant and machinery at nominal prices. =S (EER T EER e
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IREMTEIRRMEE #Z=2019F6B30HLEFE

27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 27. ERERIASE
Details of the deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised and movements FUFEROELREEE/ (BE ) RE
during the year: EaE
Investment  Accelerated
tax tax
allowance depreciation Others Total
IRERGRE MRFENRIERS Hith @5
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
For For For For
At 1 July 2017 32017467818 (1,985) 3,480 (1,487)
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss 3825 (51N ) /0% (2,977) 1,492 1,487 2
At 30 June 2018 and 1 July 2018 3220184635300 K2018E751H (4,962) 4,972 - 10
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss jtigas (51N ) /4% (1,990) 1,980 = (10)
At 30 June 2019 12019463308 (6,952) 6,952 - -

Others represents deferred tax recognised for unused tax losses and unutilised
capital allowances available for offset against future taxable profits.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately
RM5,736,000 (2018: RM2,038,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of unused tax losses for
the year ended 30 June 2019 and 2018 due to unpredictability of future profit
streams. The unused tax losses can be carried forward for seven years (2018:
indefinitely).

As at 30 June 2019, the Group has unutilised capital allowances of
approximately RM359,000 (2018: RM130,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
unutilised capital allowances for the year ended 30 June 2019 and 2018, due to
unpredictability of future profit streams. The unutilised capital allowances can
be carried forward indefinitely.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group has unused investment tax allowance of
approximately RM83,724,000 (2018: RM82,993,000]) available for offset against
future profits. As at 30 June 2019, a deferred tax asset of approximately
RM6,952,000 (2018: RM4,962,000) has been recognised in respect of investment
tax allowance of approximately RM28,969,000 (2018: RM20,681,000). No
deferred tax has been recognised in respect of the remaining investment
tax allowance of approximately RM54,755,000 (2018: RM62,312,000), due to
unpredictability of future profit streams. The unused investment tax allowance
can be carried forward for indefinitely.

H Sl e AR SH AR IR R A R IR E D
RIARSIE M AR E A R IR ARIER
&,

HR2019£E6 8300, AEEGFFRRIERIELN
5,736,000%7 (20185 2,038,000%% ) AJFA
FRIGSEA SIS A] . #iZE 20195 M 201856830
BLEFE, HIREEERIRIGHT), S
REBRIBEIEERIRIERIE ., RERRIEE
BB T (20185 MIRHEA) .

18201956 8300, AEEBREBEARRIRER
49359,000&% (20184F: 130,0004% ) &JA
FRIRSEA SRS A . EiZE 20195 201856830
BLIEFE, HREETERIRIGHT), S
REBEARRIRAEERIELRIE . RBBER
e REER] SRR

(22019568300, ANEBBRFEIZERR
Fi%B4983,724,000%3 (20184 82,993,000
<F ) ITRAREEARIGER . 182019568
308, EMKRERRIREEL28,969,0008F
(2018%F: 20,681,0009% ) ERIELERIE
BEX6,952,0005F (20184 4,962,000

=) o AREETERIRICHER, UM
HIIREIR BINEEA54,755,0008F (20184 :
62,312,0009F ) BRIELERIE ., KRENFIRE
ieinAan IR AR



112 KINGSLEY EDUGROUP LIMITED EXEEHELEEEERAT www.kingsley.edu.my @@

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2019
RO BERENT HE2019F6830HIEFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. B&&E
The Company was incorporated on 12 January 2017 with authorised share ARBHR2017F1 BI12H MM, RERA
capital of US50,000 divided into 5,000,000 ordinary shares of US$0.01 each #50,000Z5T, 45745,000,000p3 A3 E(E0.01
(equivalent to RM0.045), 1,000 new ordinary shares were issued and fully 25t (HBERR0.0454F ) EER, WEHT
paid-up. Star Shine Finance Limited, DGMK Investment Limited and Eduking T2 4421, 0008 HT&&8R% » Star Shine Finance
Investment Limited subscribed for 800,120 and 80 shares at par respectively. Limited, DGMK Investment Limited &zEduking
Investment Limited 7> BIZEIEREE8005% . 120
F& K BOBZARAD o
Share capital information sets out below represents the movement on the UTERAERBARTRERNEEREET
amount of authorised and issued capital of the Company during the year: A RRREEEN R :
Amount
=
Number
Notes Par Value of shares us$ HK$
Bi¥aE HE BRinEA E ] BT
Authorised: £ -
At 1 July 2017 201727818 US$0.01z5¢ 5,000,000 50,000 -
Increase in authorised share capital (b) and (c)
IRTERRAIEIN (b)R(c) HK$0.01;#%x 1,000,000,000 - 10,000,000
Cancellation (b) US$0.0125 (5,000,000) (50,000) -
At 30 June 2018, 1 July 2018 and 30 June 2019
#R20185E6 8308 . 201857810 R2019566830H HK$0.01;#% 1,000,000,000 - 10,000,000
Amount
Amount equivalent
&8 SEFEER
Number
Notes Par Value of shares us$ HK$ RM’000
PiE [ BRHE ER BT FE&F
Issued and fully paid: 2577124,z -
At 1 July 2017 201787818 US$0.015 1,000 10 - 1
Issuance of ordinary shares /7@ (a) US$0.015¢ 1,000 10 = 1
Issuance of ordinary shares /7@ (b) HK$0.01:5% 2,000 = 20 =
Shares repurchased and cancelled sER:448:% (b) US$0.015¢ (2,000) (20) = (1)
Capitalisation issue &y 317 (d) HK$0.01557¢ 599,998,000 - 5,999,980 3,029
Issuance of ordinance shares upon listing
B ERBTEER (e) HK$0.0157¢ 200,000,000 - 2,000,000 1,009

At 30 June 2018, 1 July 2018 and 30 June 2019
$320185E6/330H . 2018475 1H%2019F6H30H HK$0.01355¢ 800,000,000 - 8,000,000 4,039
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)
Notes:

(a)

(b]

(c]

(d]

le]

On 13 September 2017, another 1,000 new ordinary shares of the Company of par value US$0.01
each were issued and fully paid-up to the then existing shareholders.

Pursuant to respective written resolution of all the directors of the Company and all the
shareholders of the Company on 13 September 2017, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased to the aggregate of US$50,000 and HK$380,000 by the creation of an
additional 38,000,000 shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each. On the same date, 2,000 shares
of par value HK$0.01 each (the "HKD Shares”] were issued to the then existing shareholders
in proportion to their existing number of shares with a par value of US$0.01 each (the “USD
Shares”] owned. Subsequent to the issue of the HKD Shares, the USD Shares were repurchased
by the Company and cancelled immediately. Upon completion of the repurchase, 5,000,000
unissued USD Shares of the Company were cancelled so that the authorised share capital of the
Company be reduced to HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares with a par value of HK$0.01
each.

On 19 April 2018, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from HK$380,000
to HK$ 10,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each by the creation of additional
962,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each.

Pursuant to the written resolution of the shareholders passed on 19 April 2018, the directors
were authorised to capitalise the amount of HK$5,999,980 standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company and to appropriate such amount as to capital to pay up in
full at par 599,998,000 shares for allotment and issue to the then existing shareholders of the
Company, each ranking pari passu in all respects with the then existing issued shares. On 16
May 2018, the Company allotted and issued such shares as aforesaid and gave effect to the
capitalisation issue.

On 16 May 2018, the Company issued a total of 200,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
at a price of HK$0.4 per share as a result of the completion of the Global Offering. The gross
proceeds from Global Offering of HK$80,000,000 representing the par value of HK$2,000,000
credited to the Company’s share capital, and share premium of HK$78,000,000, which can
be used for deduction of share issuance expenses. After the share premium account of the
Company being credited as a result of the Global Offering, HK$5,999,980 was capitalised from
the share premium account and applied in paying up in full 599,998,000 shares which was
allotted and issued to the then shareholders. The Company’s total number of issued shares was
increased to 800,000,000 shares upon completion of Global Offering.

29. RESERVES
(a) Group

Pursuant to the Reorganisation, the subsidiary of the Company entered
into sales and purchase agreements to acquire the issued shares of
the subsidiaries. The merger reserve represents the transfer of the
difference between the consideration paid by the Company and the original
investment costs of the issued share capital of Kingsley International,
Kingsley Skills Sdn. Bhd. (“Kingsley Skills”), Kingsley Professional Centre
Sdn. Bhd. ("Kingsley Professional Centre”], and Kingsley Graduate School
Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. (“Kingsley Graduate School”] to the merger reserve
when the Company became the ultimate holding company of these
companies upon the completion of reorganisation on 30 August 2017.

28.

(a]

(b

[c]

(d]

le]

29.
(a)

it

e (18)
PfEE:

BR20178E9513H, FEAL G, 0000 EE
0.01ZETTHINFROINEY BT BB IR T 7 B AR
B

TRIEA L B2 BEEE R AL 2 EeR T 201 7F
95 13 & EEBNIZEFFEE, FATEEE
7838,000,00088 A2 [ET1E0.0 1;ETTHIBES MR 1945
JEERAKIEZE A 150,000 T 1380,000;87T
[BH, XRTEERFREEREHTIFEREED.01
ETThety ([ FEThE | ) FEAIE#E%72,000
FREAREED.0LETAR S ([ Bmhe ] ) o AL
BT BT IR E AT AR B I %8 . FELE]
TR, AKLEIFHE5,000,0000 K% 7T,
N EE R A E380,00085T, #%38,000,000
[REFIRETIED. 017 8TTHIRR LS »

BR2018F4F19H, KL 815%8EE9
962,000,000/2 A2 ET1E0.01;BTTHIRRIA S AL
ZKH1380,000;8 7T 112 10,000,000;85T, #%4
1,000,000,000/R R ET(E0.0 138 TTHIRE »
TRIEIS201854/5 19 HIBERIRFE ZE Fis 2E,
EHEITIENG5,999,980/87T (KL GR1Ra 1EAE
AOIERRFNIE ) RIZEEEAN, I IEESEEE
BERZLIEEEE B (TEEREFTFALE]
BT B R EERT599, 998,000/ R 14, 3ZZM%
T B I B E CE TR ZE AZE
5. FR20185F5816H , ALEIH#RET LR
RER DI E AR E T

2018555 16H, (FREEKEETHAAIE
R, AREFUER0.40ETHIEEZE TSR

200,000,000/ 3 AR ETE0.01 /8T E 18/ . =

Ik ERIPT SN 1B4EABS0,000,0008 T ( BIAK
L ERAHIN BEIET(E2,000,000;8 7T R AR 17518
78,000,000 7T ) BB (5 #1TRI%
RALGR N o (B A 2 Bk EIE N IR,
5,999,980 8T B R 1 A ERFIEAEX,
WHREEEZ A EEERETT SR EL
599,998,000/ 15 » IEIKEETREE, KALE
HIEZ{ TR (D ABEIE12800,000,000/% »

KEE

RIFEE, ARIIMBLATTLES R
BB ARZEETRG . GUHEE
1520175688 30H A EHER AL
AKingsley International, Kingsley Skills
Sdn. Bhd. ( [ Kingsley Skills | ) .

Kingsley Professional Centre Sdn. Bhd
( [ Kingsley Professional Centre | ) &
Kingsley Graduate School Malaysia Sdn.
Bhd. ( [ Kingsley Graduate School | )

HREIERABDMSANT MR ESRELE
RBABEETRANFEREMAZE
BB EGIHEE.
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29. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 29. & (&)
(a) Group (Continued) la)  ALE (4)
As at 30 June 2019 and 2018, an amount of approximately RM18,299,000, 1220195 R 201856 3300, AT
being the difference between the considerations paid by the Company REBEHBAS S TIRANRRARA
and the original investment costs of the issued share capital of the ZZEEH%418,299,0009 ED NG HEEE
subsidiaries, was recorded in the merger reserve account. i
Merger Other Retained
reserve reserve earnings Total
AfffHE Hithf# s RERT 5
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Fol Fou Fou Fou
At 1 July 2017 p201757818 18,300 = 13,351 31,651
Profit for the year &pyiiss) - - 1,510 1,510
Effect of Reorganisation s/ (1) = = (1)
At 30 June 2018 2018468308 18,299 - 14,861 33,160
Profit for the year &pizF) - - 2,252 2,252
Issuance of new shares to non-controlling shareholder
BTG FARRRARSR - = 29 29
Fair value gain on an interest free loan &a&z @K - 5,297 - 5,297
At 30 June 2019 12019468308 18,299 5,297 17,142 40,738
The movement of merger reserve during the year ended 30 June 2018 was REZE2018568300LEE, A
arisen from the Reorganisation, which represents the consideration paid SIS HEBEERIKEKingsley
for the acquisition of Kingsley International, Kingsley Graduate School, International. Kingsley Graduate
Kingsley Skills and Kingsley Professional Centre. School. Kingsley SkillsKKingsley

Professional Centreff{fHIIE .
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29. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 29. Gl ()
(b] Company b &4

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total
BRIfiEE S5hEsiE st
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Fom Fom Foi
At 1 July 2017 320174£7818 - (567) (567)
Profit for the year &p3sF) = (8,484) (8,484)
Issue of ordinary share for share offer (Note 28) sifgtpasess @ (Hi8) 39,382 - 39,382
Transaction costs attributable to issue of new shares Z/T# RS2 RA (4,943) = (4,943)
Capitalisation issue (Note 28) &easis (Hzi28) (3,029) = (3,029)
At 30 June 2018 201868300 31,410 (9,051) 22,359
Profit for the year &pssF - (1,477) (1,477)
At 30 June 2019 32019568308 31,410 (10,528) 20,882
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves lc) fEERIMEERER
(i) Share premium account i) RRIDEER
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the RERSHEATE, ARFRN
share premium account of the Company are distributable to the HERNESTDIRT AR R
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately following the R, EXEEFRIREEHE,
date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company AREBBRNRABESBIET
will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary (CELEPAETE
course of business.
(il Other reserve (i) EftbiEE
Other reserve represents the fair value gain on an interest-free loan Hitf @i —RRRIRHNRE
granted by a shareholder. BRI R ERE .
30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 30. BERFRERMEE
(a) Major non-cash transactions a) BXIERERS
For the year ended 30 June 2019, the liquidated and ascertained damages BE2019F6830HILFE, REPBIBEE
of RM5,475,000 (2018: RM5,475,000) were debited to the current account HWEBEESA5,475,0008F (20185 :
with Kingsley Hills Sdn. Bhd.. 5,475,000&% ) , icAKingsley Hills
Sdn. Bhd AIEZRARS
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30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) 3. FEAREFRERMEE (F)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b)  EHEEBISEEE)
The following table shows the Group’s changes in liabilities arising from TERETFNAEERE TS RENE
financing activities during the year: 8.
Total
Amounts Obligations liabilities
due (from)/ under from
to related Bank finance financing
companies borrowings leases activities
(W) / FE(s RAEREN
[l VNG EN ] $RITIER RUETRERIE FriS G fEEEs
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
Fou Fon For For
At 1 July 2017 p20174£7818 20,527 69,583 120 90,230
Change in cash flows manss (20,099) 17,880 (121) (2,340)
Non-cash changes FR$ %
- Liquidated and ascertained damages - :2Ejig=ERES (5,475) — — (5,475)
- Acquisition - gz 16,200 - - 16,200
- Amortized debt issuance costs - Bi#ssssERIA - 45 - 45
- Interest accrued - EstHIE - - 1 1
At 30 June 2018 and 1 July 2018 5220185265308 % 2018575 1H 11,153 87,508 - 98,661
Change in cash flows m& s 12,527 (21,465) (11) (8,949)
Non-cash changes FER & &)
- Liquidated and ascertained damages - i2fpisELmEES (5,475) - - (5,475)
- Gain on loan modification - &=eszs (5,297) - - (5,297)
- Amortized debt issuance costs - BSR4 - 45 - 45
- Acquisition -8 - - 300 300
At 30 June 2019 22019468308 12,908 66,088 289 79,285
31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31. BFERIE
The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting period are as FEREHAR, AEENERREBRALT:
follows:
2019 & 2018 &
RM’000 RM’000
FE5 FE5

Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment g, BB REEIERE 1,564 10,649
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32. LEASE COMMITMENTS 32. HERE
Commitments under operating leases REHERIE
As lessor (EZ3HFAN

At the end of each reporting period, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables in respect of leased properties under non-cancellable lease as
follows:

Not later than one year —&py
Later than one year and not later than five years —F&BRRERN

At 30 June 2019 and 2018, the Group leases its properties under operating
lease arrangements which run for an initial period of three years.

As lessee
At 30 June 2019 and 2018, the total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

Within one year —Fpy
In the second to fifth years inclusive £8—&=%1F (GiFEERE)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain
of its lease properties. Leases are negotiated for terms between 1 year to 5
years (2018: 1 year to 5 years) at fixed rentals for the year ended 30 June 2019.

REREIR, AEERTTHEIESPHE
PRGN RIAR AR AR S ARERAN T -

2019 & 2018
RM’000 RM’000
For Fox
91 29
340 33
431 62

R2019E K 20185F6 H30H , ANEEBRELE
FAETHFEENE, NEAE=F.

(eI
120194 201856 B30, A ETE
SRR SRS B M SBaE

2019 & 2018 &
RM’000 RM’000
Fo=5 Fe5
192 269

79 162

271 431

EHEENIEA SRS THEMERGCN
THE . #HZE20195F6B30HILEE, KhERAIHE
EFEBNTFIFEEF (20185F: 15FZ55F) ,
FHEERE.



118 KINGSLEY EDUGROUP LIMITED EXEEHELEEBERAE www.kingsley.edu.my @@

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements For the year ended 30 June 2019
RO BERENT HE2019F6830HIEFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. HEBEES
(a) At 30 June 2019 and 2018, Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon and Dato’ (a)  FR20195- 201856 H30H, FHHIESE
Goh Meng Keong provided personal guarantee to secure for the bank SPERERPERIEANER, LIS
borrowings (Note 25) grant to the Group. REBEZAVIRITHER (MFFE25) 1FiE
Ro
(b) The remuneration of members of key management during the year were as (b) £y, EREERASRFINT:
follows:

2019 & 2018 &
RM’000 RM’000
For Foi
Fees, salaries and staff welfare benefits (short term employee benefits)
Be. FEkETEMN (JaiEsEH ) 922 899
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes (post employment benefits)
IRAMERIGTEIMER (BRERERT) ) 93 112
1,015 1,011
Further details of directors’” and chief executive’'s emoluments are BREENESTTRASZHENE—L
included in Note 10 to the financial statements. FHBER B T RaEMEE10,
(c) During the year, the Group entered into the following significant (c) Py, AEBERMSSETUTELRRZ
transactions with related parties: 2:
In addition to those related party transactions and balances disclosed IS BRI EM A D FTiR RIS
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group had the SR BRAERIL, AEBICE LRI
following transactions with its related parties during the year: BT
2019 & 2018 &
Notes RM’000 RM’000
BidaE Fo5 FoF
Revenue received from a related company skiEpIEs S~ Kt (a) 10 42
Cost of revenue paid to a related company fEfSRaRt A SIS A (a) - 6
Liquidated and ascertained damages received from a related company (b) 5,475 5,475
REFBASIRIEENTERES
Construction expenses paid to a related company R A SR EH (b) 9,826 16,200
Notes: PiaE
(a]  Adirector, Tan Sri Dato’ Sri Goh Ming Choon, has control over the related company. la) %gf?jﬁg HEEERE, HHA
(b) A director, Dato’ Goh Meng Keong, has control over the related company. 1) ig%gégggwyg P A ot

.
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34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective of managing capital is to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce cost of capital.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total debt to equity.
Total debts include bank borrowings and finance lease obligation. Equity
represents total equity of the Group.

The directors of the Company actively and regularly reviews and manages
the Group’s capital structure, taking into consideration the future capital
requirements of the Group, to ensure optimal shareholders’ returns. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares and raise new debts or sells assets to reduce
debts.

The gearing ratios were as follows:

Bank borrowing $g/5{&2x
Obligations under finance leases gi&HEFiE

Total equity #4228

Gearing ratio a4 &&=

34.

EXEE

REFEREERZ BRIRBARIERGHEL
ErIgeH, LARRRENAEMTISIERES IR
R, UNRESRESAER, BURERR

o

»E

REBFERAESAEEIE (AIREREREN
tb?ﬁ) BRER, BQEBUERTEINME
BRIE, R ?EZKE@&‘ SHEER

KRB EFEBEAEBMENEBETENE
ENEE, WEBAEBARKENER,
RECRESRERR . FEEREIRTAE
WRIEEEENRRSHEREENGHILEE
TELHIREE . REISSRBERGER, AL
REERERMRRKREESHE. ARFRES
K. FETHRESENERNHEEENE.

BEAREEIENT:

2019 & 2018
RM’000 RM’000
For Fox
66,088 87,508
289 -
66,377 87,508
76,266 68,518
87% 128%
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35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY #F2@8sikiR %

36.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ikzanisE
Investments in subsidiaries 12 &KEAS

CURRENT ASSETS ixahigE

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables fa(Jzia. &e R EMEKEIE

Amounts due from subsidiaries kB FZ1E
Cash and cash equivalents B&RIELZEY

Total current assets sshaEa@E

CURRENT LIABILITIES #aiafE
Other payables and accruals EfbfEEnamk e R
Amount due to a subsidiary gESHEASEZIE

Total current liabilities sxgi&aEuess

NET CURRENT ASSETS izaniaasE

NET ASSETS iz

EQUITY iz

Share capital g4

Share premium g i(E
Accumulated losses it

TOTAL EQUITY igasasm

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors of the company on 21 August 2019.

2019 & 2018 &
RM’000 RM’000
FoH FoH

1 1

103 630
23,628 23,196
1,927 2,976
25,658 26,802
317 405
421 =
738 405
24,920 26,397
24,921 26,398
4,039 4,039
31,410 31,410
(10,528) (9,051)
24,921 26,398

36. HLMERAFBERE

I RE M BERRE2019F8 5 21 HEART

BEETIENIEETIE,
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